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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon.

          3  Welcome to the hearing for the Civil Service and

          4  Labor Committee.  My name is Joe Addabbo.  I will be

          5  chairing the Committee.  Good afternoon, everyone,

          6  and thank you for being here.

          7                 We will be holding a hearing on two

          8  resolutions and a vote on both.  The first is

          9  Resolution 1083, and the second is Reso. 1148.

         10                 Before I get started, let me just

         11  acknowledge a couple of people who are up front

         12  here.  First, to my left, is Policy Analyst, Joan

         13  Povolny, to my right is Thomas Curry, the legal

         14  Counsel.  I want to thank them for putting this

         15  hearing together.  I would also like to thank the

         16  Sergeant- at- Arms for helping us out today, as

         17  well.  I would like to thank my legislative aide,

         18  Steve Addonisio and again, I would like to thank all

         19  of you for being here today.

         20                 We will be first doing a vote on

         21  Resolution 1148. 1148 is a resolution calling upon

         22  the State Legislature and the Governor to enact

         23  legislation amending the Retirement and Social

         24  Security Law, to allow members of the New York

         25  City's five pension systems, who are on military
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          2  leave, and serving in Afghanistan or Iraq, and who

          3  are disabled as a natural and proximate result of an

          4  accident sustained in such service, to have these

          5  military personnel qualify for the accidental

          6  disability benefits, equal to three quarters of

          7  their City salary.

          8                 According to the Mayor's Office of

          9  Veterans Affairs, approximately 11,000 City

         10  residents have served in the military over the past

         11  three years.  And roughly 1500 of them are City

         12  employees.  The resolution today acknowledges the

         13  issues veterans face when they return home, and the

         14  re- adjustment to civilian life.

         15                 New York State law and its most

         16  recent pension provisions, do not appear to provide

         17  benefits for City employees who may not be able to

         18  go back to work on an on- going basis due to a

         19  service related injury.  This resolution today calls

         20  upon the State legislature and Governor Pataki to

         21  include these veterans, who are City employees, a

         22  much needed disability benefit.

         23                 And the second resolution today,

         24  which will be having witnesses testify for, is

         25  Resolution 1083.  A resolution calling upon Governor
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          2  Pataki and the New York State Department of Labor to

          3  not close, but to maintain the Unemployment

          4  Telephone Claims Center in lower Manhattan.  There

          5  are only three such Call Centers in all of New York

          6  State, and the Call Center in lower Manhattan

          7  handles all unemployment claims and inquiries for

          8  all of New York City.  Closing the Manhattan Call

          9  Center would mean relocating over 200 quality jobs

         10  to upstate New York.  Closing of this Call Center

         11  would also mean that New York City residents, with

         12  unemployment issues, would not have direct

         13  assistance or a location to go to.

         14                 Currently the Call Canter is located

         15  in an area directly impacted by 9- 11, an area which

         16  is experiencing a rebirth. That is why closing of

         17  the Unemployment Telephone Claims Center is

         18  absolutely contrary to Governor Pataki's pledge to

         19  revive lower Manhattan.  It would also have a

         20  detrimental effect on the local economy there.

         21                 But not withstanding, the efforts of

         22  this committee and others who have expressed their

         23  opposition to the closing of this Call Center, the

         24  Call Center is scheduled to close this Thursday,

         25  September 30th.
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          2                 And again, I want to thank you all

          3  for being here today.  I want to also acknowledge

          4  Council Member Robert Jackson who will also like to

          5  make a statement at this time.  Council Member

          6  Jackson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

          8  Chair Addabbo. Good afternoon everyone, ladies and

          9  gentlemen.  It is a shame that we are here today in

         10  order to address this particular issue, the closure

         11  of the Telephone Call Center to New York State Call

         12  Center, located in lower Manhattan.  I thought that

         13  there was a commitment from the City of New York and

         14  the State of New York with respects to insuring that

         15  economic development continued to grow in lower

         16  Manhattan, especially after 9- 11.  And in my

         17  opinion, this goes totally against the grain,

         18  because it is negatively impacting the economy in

         19  lower Manhattan.  And not only that, as I have said

         20  at the press conference held by the various unions,

         21  PEF, the New York State Public Employees Federation,

         22  and CSEA, the Civil Service Employees Association,

         23  when they held a press conference in front of the

         24  telephone, the Department of Labor building on

         25  Hudson Street, that this here is nothing but pure
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          2  politics.  And I have said that loud and clear.  It

          3  is not about the money.  And if anyone says it is

          4  about dollars and cents, I will call them a liar to

          5  their face.  And let me be quite frank and bold.

          6  New York State, as I said, Chair Addabbo, the budget

          7  is $105 billion dollars.  And the cost for their

          8  Telephone Call Center to remain open by their own

          9  estimate, is only $9 million dollars, minuscule in

         10  the whole scheme of things.  And no one can tell me

         11  that they cannot find $9 million dollars to keep

         12  this important facility open.  Not only we are

         13  talking about jobs for employees that majority, all

         14  of them live in New York City, but you are talking

         15  about a service to the economy of New York City, in

         16  order to help individuals deal with the system, and

         17  attempting to be re- employed. And the majority of

         18  those individuals that are using the system are

         19  Black, Hispanic or Asian.  And in fact, the

         20  Telephone Call Center handles many, many calls from

         21  many different languages and people's background,

         22  and they handle it very, very well.  So no one can

         23  argue that it had not been a very successful

         24  operation there.  And in fact, if the employees were

         25  given an ultimatum, either you move upstate or you
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          2  lose your job, that is not how you treat employees.And

          3  Governor Pataki has not budged, in my opinion, on

          4  this particular matter, and I think that we, as the

          5  City of New York, must communicate loud and clear

          6  that we are opposed to the closing of the Call

          7  Center by this resolution.

          8                 So, I am glad to be a part of this,

          9  and I may say, Mr. Chair, if you do not know, let me

         10  just disclose for those who may not know.  I am a

         11  member of the New York State Public Employees

         12  Federation and proud to be a member of that union.

         13  I started out my State service as a member of PEF.

         14  I was a Director of field services and a staff

         15  person for over 22 years.  And I am still a member

         16  of that union.  I do believe that this situation, as

         17  far as moving the jobs up there, is nothing but

         18  politics, as far as, in order to look at the economy

         19  upstate.  And I think that Shelly Silver, our

         20  Speaker, needs to be stronger on this, stepping up

         21  to insure that his assembly district, down here, and

         22  the employees that work in his area, are protected

         23  with respect to insuring that the people of New York

         24  City are serviced, with regards to questions and

         25  concerns that they have regarding their unemployment
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          2  insurance benefits.

          3                 So, Mr. Chair, I know that I do not,

          4  I am not here to make things nice, but I am here to

          5  tell the truth.  And the truth of the matter is,

          6  this Telephone Call Center should not be closed and

          7  it is nothing about politics.  And by we (sic.)

          8  Pushing forward this resolution today, will speak

          9  volumes, as far as this City council standing up and

         10  saying, that is not right, and it should remain

         11  open.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         13  Council Member Jackson.

         14                 I would also like to add that of all

         15  the material that I have read, and all the material

         16  I have heard of regarding the closing of the lower

         17  Manhattan Call Center, I have not heard one

         18  compelling argument on why this is a justified

         19  closing of this Call Center, and to relocate these

         20  jobs.  So, I agree with my Council Member, my

         21  colleague, Council Member Jackson, that this is a

         22  severe issue that needs to be addressed, and that we

         23  are calling today not to close that Call Center for

         24  good reasons.

         25                 At this point, I would like to call

                                                            11

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  our first witness to give testimony, Grace Birch

          3  from the New York State Department of Labor.  Ms.

          4  Birch?  Please take the witness stand. Ms. Birch, if

          5  you could just please state your full name and your

          6  correct affiliation, and then give your testimony.

          7  Thank you. Just hit the red button first.  There you

          8  go.

          9                 MS. BIRCH: My name is Grace Birch.  I

         10  work for the New York State Department of Labor

         11  Unemployment Insurance Claims Center.

         12                 Good afternoon, Chairman Addabbo and

         13  extinguished panel.  The closing of the New York

         14  City TCC, like several of my coworkers, as of

         15  November 2001, I would have been an employee of the

         16  New York City TCC for four years, after being called

         17  from the LSR, Labor Service Representative exam

         18  listing.

         19                 Previously, I was an hourly employee

         20  for five years. Although I enjoyed working in my

         21  prior unit, the move to permanency was a preferred

         22  choice.  The optimal condition of a successful

         23  operation should include experience, enthusiastic

         24  skilled and educated employees.  Those are the

         25  conditions which exist in the New York City TCC.
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          2                 The intended move of 266 positions

          3  will take away 266 future opportunities for people

          4  of color, to serve in these government positions in

          5  the New York City area.  It will possibly take away

          6  the opportunity to serve in these positions outside

          7  of the New York City area, also.  Most people take a

          8  civil service exam with the expectation of obtaining

          9  employment near to the place they live.  Travel and

         10  moving are always an option.  However, in this

         11  situation, this move will reduce the number of

         12  people of color who respond to UI claimants, from

         13  the New York City area.

         14                 Most of the clerical staff were

         15  placed in various positions in New York City, some

         16  retired, and some were laid off. Some have decided

         17  to move upstate, which is a decision they would not

         18  have made otherwise.

         19                 I am American and I live in Flatbush,

         20  Brooklyn.  I understand the accents from Jamaica,

         21  Haiti, Trinidad, Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico.

         22    These are the people who live in my neighborhood.

         23  The claimants are able to speak to people who

         24  understand their dialect and culture.  This is a

         25  favorable aspect because it is stressful enough
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          2  having to claim UI benefits.  It helps to have

          3  people who can easily take a claim, or conduct an

          4  interview, on a one on one basis.

          5                 And so, in conclusion, the New York

          6  City TCC should remain open.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          8  much, Ms. Birch. Ms. Birch, a question, what reason

          9  were you told that this Call Center may close?

         10                 MS. BIRCH: Economic reasons.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Economic

         12  reasons?  For economic benefit of who?  The State?

         13  Obviously, not New York City, right?

         14                 MS. BIRCH: Correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: But did they

         16  tell you who, and detailed what economic benefit

         17  they are talking about?

         18                 MS. BIRCH: No, just the saving

         19  because the rent was too high in the location that

         20  we are at.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Now you have

         22  been at that Call Center for four years?

         23                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You have seen a

         25  change in the lower part of Manhattan, right, over
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          2  the past four years, for the better?

          3                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay?  Would you

          5  say that the closing of this Call Center would be

          6  going in the total opposite direction, that

          7  obviously would have a detrimental affect on the

          8  area?

          9                 MS. BIRCH: I agree, because besides

         10  that we are employees at the 345 Hudson Street

         11  location, we also go to lunch, we go to places after

         12  work in the area.  We are also business for the

         13  area.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Sure.  And do

         15  you also see that, you  have said that a number of

         16  employees moved upstate as per their choice, but if

         17  we are looking to relocate 266 positions upstate, do

         18  you not see that New York City is losing these

         19  people?

         20                 MS. BIRCH: Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That New York

         22  City is losing a further tax base and obviously, the

         23  participation of these 266 good residents moving

         24  somewhere else?  Do you see that, as well, right?

         25                 MS. BIRCH: That is correct, that is
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          2  correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Questions from

          4  my colleagues? Council Member Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I want to

          6  thank you, first of all, for coming in and

          7  testifying.

          8                 How are you being directly impacted?

          9  Are you relocating upstate?

         10                 MS. BIRCH: I do not know.  I would

         11  rather not move.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You would

         13  rather not.  So you are thinking about moving?

         14                 MS. BIRCH: The thought of moving is

         15  maybe one percent in my mind.  I would fight to

         16  remain in New York City.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And are you a

         18  permanent employee right now?

         19                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  And

         21  have they offered you another job other than

         22  relocating upstate?

         23                 MS. BIRCH: Well, we had a meeting

         24  with the -- we are going to have a meeting,

         25  actually, this week to discuss possible other job
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          2  opportunities in New York City for the staff.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And what is

          4  your title currently?

          5                 MS. BIRCH: Labor Service Rep.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What grade is

          7  that?

          8                 MS. BIRCH: I am sixteen.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, grade

         10  sixteen.  And the reason given to you and your

         11  colleagues, was economic reasons.

         12                 MS. BIRCH: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That the rent

         14  was too high. Is that correct?

         15                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now, do you

         17  know about the rent for that particular area where

         18  the Department of Labor is located at?  Is it

         19  comparable to all the other rent in the area? Or you

         20  have no knowledge of that?

         21                 MS. BIRCH: I cannot, I do not know

         22  that. I do not know.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, so you

         24  do not know?

         25                 MS. BIRCH: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  And

          3  how long has the Department of Labor been at that

          4  location?  Do you know?  How long have you been

          5  there?

          6                 MS. BIRCH: I have been there four

          7  years.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Four years.

          9  So, was it brand new when you moved in, or they had

         10  already been there?

         11                 MS. BIRCH: I think there had been

         12  staff there for maybe two years before I came.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  And

         14  the TCC, that is what it is called, right?

         15                 MS. BIRCH: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: The Telephone

         17  Call Center?

         18                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Where is that

         20  located at? At 345 Hudson Street?

         21                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What floors?

         23                 MS. BIRCH: We occupy three floors.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What floors?

         25                 MS. BIRCH: The third, seventh,
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          2  eighth, and, I am sorry, four floors, and the sixth

          3  floor.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And the

          5  Department of Labor, does it rent the entire

          6  building?

          7                 MS. BIRCH: No.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Do not.

          9                 MS. BIRCH: There are other private

         10  companies there, also.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  But

         12  the TCC is part of the Department of Labor, is that

         13  correct?

         14                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Do you know

         16  what floor the Department of Labor rent in totality?

         17                 MS. BIRCH: Those four floors.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Those four

         19  floors?

         20                 MS. BIRCH: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is the entire

         22  DOL, the TCC Call Center?  I mean, the entire four

         23  floors, is that everything?

         24                 MS. BIRCH: No, there are other

         25  Department of Labor offices in the building.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Oh, have they

          3  been shut down, too?

          4                 MS. BIRCH: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Oh, they have

          6  not?

          7                 MS. BIRCH: No.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Do you mean

          9  they are still there?

         10                 MS. BIRCH: Still there.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I see.  And

         12  do you know when the lease of the Department of

         13  Labor overall expires?

         14                 MS. BIRCH: We have been told the

         15  lease expires January 2007.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is that for

         17  the Call Center or for the entire Department of

         18  Labor?

         19                 MS. BIRCH: Well, we have been told

         20  that the Call Center's stay there will end September

         21  2006, possibly.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: September?

         23  Possibly?

         24                 MS. BIRCH: That is possibly, because

         25  if employees leave, that they can be changed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: If employees

          3  leave?

          4                 MS. BIRCH: If a lot of the employees

          5  leave, that they could be moved up.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You mean to

          7  close earlier?

          8                 MS. BIRCH: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  And

         10  what if a lot of people do not leave?  Will it be

         11  pushed back?

         12                 MS. BIRCH: No. No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You do not

         14  know?

         15                 MS. BIRCH: No.  No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Or, you do

         17  not believe so?

         18                 MS. BIRCH: I do not think so.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Well,

         20  I want to thank you for coming in and giving

         21  testimony.

         22                 MS. BIRCH: Can I just say one more, I

         23  am sorry, one more thing?  Even though we have been

         24  offered other positions in New York City --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You have been
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          2  offered already another position?

          3                 MS. BIRCH: No, even though we will be

          4  offered other positions in New York City --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You mean, you

          6  will be, or you think you will be?

          7                 MS. BIRCH: We think we will be.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  You do

          9  not know for sure, is that correct?

         10                 MS. BIRCH: Correct. They said that

         11  this is a possibility, that we will be offered other

         12  positions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Possibility?

         14                 MS. BIRCH: But it is not determined

         15  also whether we will remain at the same grade level

         16  or salary that we are at.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You mean you

         18  are going to get a higher grade?

         19                 MS. BIRCH: No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And a higher

         21  salary?

         22                 MS. BIRCH: No. No.  It would go

         23  lower.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: It would go

         25  lower?  Okay. No further questions.  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          4  Council Member Jackson.

          5                 And Ms. Birch, we want to thank you

          6  for kicking things off today.  Thank you very much.

          7                 MS. BIRCH: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next witness

          9  will be State Senator Diane Savino.  Senator Savino?

         10    Press the button.

         11                 SENATOR SAVINO: That is right, I

         12  forgot.  It has been a while since I have been here.

         13

         14                 Good afternoon.  First I want to

         15  thank Chairman Addabbo and the entire Civil Service

         16  Committee, especially Robert Jackson, for holding

         17  this hearing.

         18                 And it is particularly important that

         19  we know that you are holding this hearing because

         20  technically, this body has very little jurisdiction

         21  over this issue, because you are a City Council, you

         22  oversee City agencies.  This is a State issue.  And

         23  I am actually, I am quite concerned and quite

         24  disturbed, by the fact that the State legislature,

         25  who does have jurisdiction over this, is not holding
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          2  a hearing on it.  And has basically ignored this

          3  particular problem.

          4                 I want to testify today about my

          5  opposition of the Governor's proposal to close the

          6  Department of Labor Telephone Claim Center, or the

          7  TCC in lower Manhattan.  As the ranking member on

          8  the Senate Labor Committee, and as a former labor

          9  leader, former Vice President of the Social Service

         10  Employee's Union Local 371 of District Council 37, I

         11  have a number of concerns regarding this proposal.

         12                 My first and obvious concern, of

         13  course, is the immediate impact on the 250 employees

         14  who were employed at the TCC. It is completely

         15  outrageous to think that employees have to choose

         16  between their job, and where they are going to live.

         17    That they are going to uproot their entire family

         18  to follow a job.  Now nobody goes into public

         19  service to get rich, right, Robert?  We all know

         20  this.  You know, and if they were earning, you know,

         21  $150 thousand dollars a year, I might say, it might

         22  be worth the move to Buffalo. But I know what these

         23  workers get paid.  And I know the idea that they

         24  should be forced to uproot their entire families to

         25  move up to Buffalo, to follow a job, is absolutely
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          2  outrageous.  And I do not think that the Governor, I

          3  certainly do not think that Linda Angelo, the

          4  Commissioner of the Department of Labor, gave any

          5  thought to that, when they made this plan.  Many of

          6  these employees have children in school, they have

          7  parents who need care, they have neighbors they have

          8  come to know, and to suggest that the agency will be

          9  more efficient with this move, might in a vacuum be

         10  true, but there does not seem to be a thought of how

         11  this will affect the working men and women that are

         12  currently assigned in this lower Manhattan cite.

         13                 One of the other concerns I have is

         14  the accuracy of what the agency says about

         15  significant savings achieved.  You have heard

         16  previous testimony from the young lady that sat here

         17  before me that talked about the fact that the center

         18  is not actually closing.  They are just taking away

         19  some jobs, not all of them.  So how much savings

         20  could there really be?  There seems to be a

         21  difference of opinion between the State and the

         22  Public Employee's Federation on the amount of

         23  dollars that will be saved.  And I think until these

         24  differences can be agreed on, the agency should put

         25  this proposal on hold.  I have asked the State
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          2  Commissioner of Labor to take that position, and up

          3  until now, she has refused to answer that request,

          4  and she has not informed me that she is going to put

          5  this on hold.

          6                 I also think it is important that we

          7  remind the governor that lower Manhattan is still

          8  healing from the events of September 11th.  And

          9  while we give huge tax breaks to companies like

         10  Goldman Sachs, who quite frankly, did not need it,

         11  quite frankly did not need it, to stay in lower

         12  Manhattan, we think that we can lose 250 civil

         13  service jobs.  It shows that there seems to be a

         14  disconnect between what the State government does,

         15  and what the City government does.

         16                 This proposed closure is a complete

         17  contrast of what the Governor says publicly is his

         18  vision for making Ground Zero whole again.  We need

         19  not only to stop the flow of jobs from lower

         20  Manhattan, we need to insure that working men and

         21  women have the ability to make a living without

         22  uprooting their lives.

         23                 Now those are my public comments,

         24  that are written. But you know, I have sat before

         25  this body over the years as the Vice President of
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          2  Local 371 before I was elected to the State Senate,

          3  and over the years, the City council, in this side

          4  of the building, the Mayor's Office on the other

          5  side of the building, and Commissioners from City

          6  agencies, have faced problems like this numerous

          7  times.  1993, through the creation of the Department

          8  of Homeless Services that was legislated by this

          9  City council, some of your predecessors, 1994, when

         10  the City of New York faced, you know, potential

         11  devastating out year budget deficits, and the

         12  Giuliani administration helped negotiate, with the

         13  help of the City council and City agencies and the

         14  municipal unions, a vast severance package so that

         15  people would not have to be separated from their job

         16  without some protection.  We were able to prevent

         17  layoffs.  We have always done it because there was a

         18  spirit of cooperation between the Executive Branch,

         19  the Legislative Branch and the work force.  That

         20  does not seem to exist in the State.  And I hope

         21  mostly what comes out of this today, is that this

         22  body, this body led by you, Joe Addabbo, the

         23  committee Chairman, can send an example to the State

         24  legislature and to the State Commissioner of Labor,

         25  that there is another way to do this.  That if they
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          2  are going to down size the agency, and they may.

          3  You know, those of us in the Municipal Labor

          4  Movement, we used to have a saying that, management

          5  has an absolute right to manage, and they also have

          6  an absolute right to mismanage.  It was our job to

          7  protect the interest of the work force.  And that is

          8  what PEF is doing, very adequately.  But you have to

          9  have a partner in this and there does not appear to

         10  be a partner.  So to the extent that this body can

         11  send a body to the State Commissioner of Labor and

         12  to the Governor's Office, that they need to take

         13  another look at this. That if they are going to make

         14  the claim that they have got to downsize this

         15  division, that they need to protect the interest of

         16  the workers, they need to re- deploy them, if

         17  possible.  They must re- deploy them to jobs that

         18  are equivalent to what they are earning right now.

         19  They should not take a loss in salary or status.

         20  That is unconscionable.  They should not be held

         21  liable for the agency's mismanagement.

         22                 So I hope that if nothing else, that

         23  is the message that we send from here today.  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.
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          2  Thank you, Senator Savino.

          3                 First, in your written testimony, I

          4  do appreciate you acknowledging the uprooting of

          5  workers, because I think that is a very important

          6  issue here, asking these workers to change their

          7  lives, essentially, by the closing of this Call

          8  Center.

          9                 Also, to your point, and I appreciate

         10  it as well, acknowledging that, you know, this

         11  technically, is not within the jurisdiction of the

         12  City council or this committee, since it is a New

         13  York State Department of Labor decision.  The reason

         14  that I had taken it on, as far as an agenda and for

         15  this committee and called upon you to be here, is

         16  because these workers are New York City residents.

         17  These workers serve New York City residents, and

         18  this Call Center affects the New York City area of

         19  lower Manhattan, which has experienced a great

         20  rebirth, and this just goes a couple of steps

         21  backwards.  So, that is why I was, you know,

         22  interested in taking on this issue, so I appreciate

         23  your being here and giving us your views on the

         24  State legislative level.

         25                 Who Chairs the Labor Committee on the
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          2  State level?

          3                 SENATOR SAVINO: Senator George

          4  Maziarz.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Where does that

          6  person come from?

          7                 SENATOR SAVINO: He comes from roughly

          8  around the Buffalo region.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, so it may

         10  not really be focused on what is going on here and

         11  down State area.  So that is something else to keep

         12  in mind that we may have to draw his attention to

         13  what is going on down here in lower Manhattan.

         14                 Questions from Council Member

         15  Jackson?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes, just a

         17  quick comment. Senator, let me just thank you for

         18  coming in as an advocate for the workers.  You have

         19  always been an advocate and I appreciate your

         20  honesty and integrity in advocating for the workers.

         21                 I think I disagree with one thing and

         22  that is, we should not find them comparable jobs, if

         23  in fact, if it was true, that the reason they are

         24  closing it, is for economic reasons because the rent

         25  is too high.  Then let us relocate the TCC to an
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          2  area in New York City so that the workers and the

          3  whole entire TCC can be relocated, because the

          4  majority of them live and work in New York City.

          5  And we are servicing New York City people.  It is

          6  not to move it up there an analysis of the people

          7  that they cannot recruit the type of individuals to

          8  handle the type of clients, by being upstate near

          9  Binghamton.  And so that is my understanding, that

         10  that's a fact and so if anything, we should relocate

         11  the TCC Call Center at another location in New York

         12  City as you indicated, to do what they do to other

         13  companies to keep them in here.  If you treat the

         14  New York State Department of Labor like a company

         15  and the TCC like a company, then give them an

         16  incentive to stay here.  Let Michael Bloomberg give

         17  them a $9 million dollar incentive to stay here.

         18  And I am serious about that.  I think that is what

         19  we need to talk about.

         20                 I was listening to the news this

         21  morning, and Wall Street is doing excessively well,

         22  where bonuses for Wall Street are going to be up 30

         23  to 40 percent over last year.  And what that means

         24  as far as New York City is concerned, as you know,

         25  Senator, that means when Wall Street does well, and
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          2  tourism does well, and in fact, just Sunday in, I

          3  think, The New York Times, there was an article,

          4  tourism, 9.2 million tourists, I think, came into

          5  New York City, brought in billions of dollars.  And

          6  if both of those are doing well, New York City is

          7  going to have a surplus and not a deficit.  So, in

          8  order to keep jobs in lower Manhattan, we need to

          9  create an atmosphere for them to stay.  If we treat

         10  the TCC like a private business, even though it is

         11  not.  So, maybe New York City should consider an

         12  incentive to keep those jobs here.  And I think I

         13  will be communicating with the Mayor's office about

         14  that.

         15                 SENATOR SAVINO: What disturbs me the

         16  most is that we are here, and we are obviously very

         17  concerned because we understand the ramifications of

         18  it.  But there is nobody here from the State

         19  Department of Labor.  There is nobody here from the

         20  Governor's Office, and he has a legislative office

         21  right here in New York City.  He has an office

         22  uptown.  He could have sent somebody to this

         23  hearing.  It is a complete lack of recognition on

         24  the part of the State, that this is a problem.  And

         25  I would hope that between us, we can, through our
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          2  office, through your office, that we can reach out

          3  to the Governor's Office and inform them that this

          4  is an issue that is incredibly important to lower

          5  Manhattan, to New York City residents.  And I would

          6  like you to work on that together with us, because

          7  my letters to the Governor have gone unanswered.

          8  So, perhaps a little bit of joint effort between the

          9  City council and the State legislative members, and

         10  we might be able to take a second look at that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         12                 At this point I would like to welcome

         13  Council Member Larry Seabrook.  Council Member

         14  Seabrook, thanks for being here.

         15                 Senator Savino, a couple of things,

         16  would you agree that if it is for economic reasons

         17  that the Governor and the Department of Labor on the

         18  State level is closing this Call Center in lower

         19  Manhattan, if it is for economic reasons being that

         20  the rent is too high, last time I looked, New York

         21  City is made up of five boroughs.  Would you not

         22  think that we could somehow look in some of the

         23  other boroughs to relocate this and have the

         24  residents still live in New York City and work?

         25                 SENATOR SAVINO: Absolutely.  I can
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          2  even point out several locations in my Senate

          3  district that this group of workers could be

          4  relocated to.  Now they might not want to come to

          5  Staten Island, but I can find the space in Brooklyn.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: They can come to

          7  the 32nd Council District, Rockaway, you know,

          8  Howard Beach, Ozone Park, you know, come on down.

          9                 SENATOR SAVINO: But you raise an

         10  interesting point.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: All the Bronx, I

         12  mean, we have many boroughs who would welcome these

         13  residents to have them stay here and serve our

         14  residents.  So, you know, I think the Governor is

         15  being very tunnel vision like in saying this is high

         16  rent in Manhattan and there is no other place to go,

         17  we are leaving.  Is that truly how much connected he

         18  is with the down State area in thinking that only

         19  Manhattan has to have this Call Center?  That even

         20  in other parts of Manhattan or in the other

         21  boroughs, that there is space available for these

         22  260 some odd workers?

         23                 SENATOR SAVINO: Yes, certainly.  He

         24  could.  They could certainly look around.  And the

         25  last time I checked, rents in lower Manhattan were
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          2  lower than other parts of the City by virtue of the

          3  fact that many people do not yet want to come back

          4  downtown. You know, and if you remember back before

          5  the World Trade Center was built the first time,

          6  nobody wanted to move into that building. And it was

          7  people, some of the people who are sitting right

          8  here in this room.  The State Department of Labor

          9  was in there, almost everybody in the World Trade

         10  Center at one point was a governmental employee

         11  working for the State of New York, when no one else

         12  wanted to be in lower Manhattan.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And just to make

         14  a note, you know, realistically we understood that

         15  Governor Pataki himself was not going to be here

         16  today, but just so you know, the Governor, or

         17  representative was invited as well as a

         18  representative from the New York State Department of

         19  Labor and either representative chose to be here

         20  today, to even justify this act.  So, they were

         21  invited and they are not showing.

         22                 So, any questions from my colleagues?

         23    Council Member Seabrook.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chairman, and I apologize for being
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          2  late.  But I guess the people who would work in

          3  Manhattan would get to work on time much better if

          4  they worked upstate, as well.  I had to travel up

          5  there for a job, too.  And it is better being down

          6  here.

          7                 Just a point that I have some

          8  concerns, Senator, and it is good to see you here

          9  today, is that if the Governor is out soliciting

         10  tenants across the world to China, then I find it

         11  very strange that there is a real need of occupancy.

         12    There is this vacancy and that the City and the

         13  State just as a symbolic gesture, for people who

         14  would like to project a sense of stability, that the

         15  City could forgive the State for its rental costs

         16  and the taxes, because people who work there and

         17  live there would be spending monies and bringing

         18  revenue in.  And that would serve as an anchor that

         19  the State of New York has a presence there for

         20  purposes of saying that area is coming back, and to

         21  provide a sense of stability.  So, perhaps the time

         22  to, for all of us, the City council and State

         23  legislators here in the City, perhaps we need to

         24  make a presentation to the Mayor as a gesture of

         25  good will and stability, by saying that there is a
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          2  forgiveness of rent, and to allow this to happen

          3  because of these workers and a commitment to workers

          4  and to show in good spirit and good faith, that

          5  could happen.  So, I would hope that we could get

          6  together and make a presentation, all of us, and the

          7  timing is apropos now, because everybody seems to

          8  want to say yes.  It is election time.  And so I

          9  would hope that we would be able to do that, and see

         10  if we can make that happen so that people would say

         11  that this is a place if the State of New York has

         12  invested its resources, its manpower, then

         13  therefore, it is a place that we would like to be,

         14  and hopefully we can make that happen.

         15                 SENATOR SAVINO: I agree totally.

         16  What I will do is I will reach out to Senator

         17  Paterson and have his staff get to work on it

         18  immediately, so they can reach out to all these City

         19  legislators.  And I guess we will -- do we do it

         20  through your office, Councilman Addabbo?  Contact

         21  you and then you will be the point person here.  I

         22  think that is absolutely a great idea. Because the

         23  argument that they placed on the table over and over

         24  is that it is an economic issue.  Well if it is an

         25  economic issue and they cannot afford to pay the
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          2  rent, if we can convince the Mayor to negotiate some

          3  sort of a rent rebate for the Department of Labor,

          4  well that resolves that problem.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And I am

          6  certain that can be done. It has happened for

          7  business as well, so this would be an opportune time

          8  for this extraordinary situation, that we could do

          9  that.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         10                 SENATOR SAVINO: You are welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         12  Council Member Seabrook.  Seeing no other questions,

         13  Senator Savino, thank you very much for being here

         14  and for your time.

         15                 SENATOR SAVINO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         17                 Our next panel will be a panel of

         18  three.  We have, and excuse me if I misrepresent any

         19  names, Bethany Jankunis from Assembly Member Deborah

         20  Glick's office, Bethany?  Did I get that right

         21  Bethany?  Okay.  Patricia Baker from the Public

         22  Employees Federation.  And Jennifer Faucher?  I got

         23  it right.  Also from the Public Employees

         24  Federation.  Please take a seat.  You can just pull

         25  that third chair up.
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          2                 I want to thank you all for being

          3  here today.

          4                 Again, thank you for being here

          5  today.  I do not know if you want to flip a coin or

          6  rock, papers, scissors, whatever you want to choose.

          7    But -- just please state your name and your

          8  affiliation please.

          9                 MS. JANKUNIS: My name is Bethany

         10  Jankunis and I am Chief of Staff for Assembly Member

         11  Deborah Glick.  I just wanted to begin just by

         12  setting the record straight on one point.  The New

         13  York State Assembly did have hearings on this issue,

         14  approximately a month ago.  We are also in the

         15  process of collecting a number of letters from

         16  different Assembly members to Governor Pataki.  A

         17  bunch have been sent already, so just for the

         18  record, the Assembly has been involved and we have

         19  done a hearing.

         20                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         21  testify today in support of City Council Resolution

         22  1083, calling upon Governor Pataki and the New York

         23  State Department of Labor to retain the Unemployment

         24  Telephone Claim Center located in lower Manhattan.

         25  As the Assembly member representing parts of lower
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          2  Manhattan, including the area where this Telephone

          3  Call Center is located, I am particularly concerned

          4  about the plan to close the office.  The DOL Center

          5  slated for closure, employs a staff which mirrors

          6  New York City's diversity.  Seventeen percent of

          7  staff are white, 49 percent are black and 26 percent

          8  are Hispanic.  This diversity allows the office to

          9  directly and effectively serve New Yorkers with

         10  limited English proficiency.  In the remaining two

         11  Call Centers in Endicott and Troy, more than 90

         12  percent of staff are white.  These staffs will now

         13  be largely dependent upon a language translation

         14  line to serve non English speakers.  Not only is

         15  such a service expensive, but the literal

         16  translation provided by these services frequently

         17  loses the nuances in unemployment law and

         18  regulations.  That can be the difference between

         19  people getting or being denied the benefits they

         20  deserve.

         21                 While initially claiming that New

         22  York City South would be relocated to their two

         23  offices, DOL now concedes that few will be able to

         24  do so.  Most of these employees have firmly

         25  established roots in New York City.  Their families
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          2  live here, their partners or spouses work here, and

          3  their children go to school here.  They simply

          4  cannot just pick up and move, nor do many have the

          5  financial means to do so.  As a result, the DOL will

          6  now lose the experience that these employees have

          7  built up over the years and will have to train a new

          8  cadre of employees for these Call Centers.

          9                 The closure of the New York City Call

         10  Center is a clear case of geographic patronage and

         11  continues the disturbing trend in which public and

         12  private jobs are moved from New York City into

         13  upstate New York and elsewhere.  While all such

         14  relocations are damaging to the City's economy,

         15  these moves are particularly disturbing when a

         16  government agency is involved.  Quite simply,

         17  government should be held to a higher standard and

         18  ought to understand the damage that the loss of jobs

         19  will cause.  Although I understand that in general,

         20  it may be more expensive to operate in New York City

         21  than elsewhere in the State.  One must not forget

         22  that New York City generates much of the State's

         23  income and employs the largest number of workers

         24  than other regions of the State.

         25                 It is truly a cruel twist of fate
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          2  that the State's own Department of Labor would

          3  disregard such facts and remove badly needed jobs

          4  from New York City.  As New York State's primary

          5  advocate for job creation and economic growth, the

          6  Department of Labor ought to demonstrate how to

          7  retain jobs, not eliminate them. It is ironic that

          8  Governor Pataki has strongly advocated for financial

          9  assistance to companies staying in or relocating to

         10  lower Manhattan, while allowing State jobs to be

         11  removed from a struggling community.  We must do all

         12  we can to convince Governor Pataki to rethink this

         13  horribly misguided plan.  Passage of the City

         14  Council Resolution, is a compelling way to do so.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Jankunis,

         17  thank you very much.

         18                 At this point we are just going to

         19  call a time out on the testimony.  I would like to

         20  welcome Council Member and colleague of mine, Dennis

         21  Gallagher and while we have a quorum here for the

         22  committee, and I know my colleagues have a busy

         23  schedule, we are going to do a vote on both

         24  resolutions and then go right back to the testimony.

         25
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          2                 This is a vote on Resolution 1148,

          3  which has to do with the benefits for City employees

          4  who are serving in our military, and Resolution

          5  1083, about the Call Center.  I recommend, as Chair,

          6  a vote on yes for both resolutions.  Will the roll

          7  call be called now?

          8                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

          9  Member Addabbo?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

         11                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Seabrook?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Gallagher?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: By a vote

         16  of three in the affirmative, zero in the negative,

         17  and no abstentions, both items are adopted.  Council

         18  members, please sign the committal report.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

         20  my colleagues for their yes in the affirmative.

         21  These resolutions will now be given to the full City

         22  council tomorrow at the full stated Council hearing,

         23  where the full council will have the opportunity to

         24  vote on it and pass it at that point.  So again,

         25  thank you to my colleagues.
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          2                 Why do we not hear all testimony and

          3  then we will go to questions?  You have a time

          4  restraint.

          5                 MS. JANKUNIS: I am sorry, yes, I do

          6  have another meeting.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Then let me just

          8  add this, Ms. Jankunis, I appreciate your bringing

          9  out the idea that we may now have a translation

         10  problem if these Call Centers are moved upstate,

         11  with again, upstate workers, should the New York

         12  City workers not relocate, that will be a major

         13  disservice to those who want the service regarding

         14  unemployment issues.  And it is truly dis-serving

         15  (sic.) That a governmental agency, especially New

         16  York City Department of Labor, is doing this to our

         17  labor work force.  So again, I appreciate your

         18  bringing out those two, on behalf of Assembly Member

         19  Deborah Glick.  Thank you very much for your time.

         20                 MS. JANKUNIS: Thank you.

         21                 MS. BAKER: Okay.  Thank you.

         22  Chairman Addabbo and other members of the City

         23  council, thank you for the opportunity to speak to

         24  you today.

         25                 I am Pat Baker, Vice President of
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          2  PEF, and with me are other PEF leaders who work for

          3  the Department of Labor in New York City.  Many of

          4  them will be testifying about the hardships that the

          5  closure to New York City's Telephone Claim Center in

          6  lower Manhattan will have on New York City

          7  residents.

          8                 In addition, they will also document

          9  that the Department of Labor management has recently

         10  ordered them to not to enforce certain sections of

         11  the Unemployment Insurance Law because the closure

         12  to New York City Telephone Claims Center has

         13  resulted in a back log of contested unemployment

         14  insurance claims.  This will result in UI claimants

         15  who are cheating to still get UI benefits they are

         16  not entitled to under the law.  This is unfair to

         17  businesses and the UI claimants who play by the

         18  rules.

         19                 PEF appreciates your interest in

         20  having this hearing on the proposed closure of the

         21  New York City Telephone Claim Center in lower

         22  Manhattan, and your sponsorship of Resolution 1083

         23  which calls on Governor Pataki to keep it open.  PEF

         24  represents more than 150 of the 250 employees who

         25  will be affected by the Department of Labor's ill
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          2  conceived and unnecessary proposal, a proposal we

          3  adamantly oppose.

          4                 The closing makes no sense for

          5  numerous reasons. The State claims it needs to close

          6  it in order to deal with 9.5 million decrease in

          7  Federal funding.  However, there is no evidence that

          8  the closure will save money, nor has the State

          9  explored other cost saving options.

         10                 Let me discuss a few other reasons

         11  why the closure is discriminatory and bad public

         12  policy.  The closure will have a desperate impact on

         13  New York City residents who have limited ability to

         14  speak English.  This closure makes it very unlikely

         15  that the New York City applicants for unemployment

         16  insurance will be able to talk to the DOL employee

         17  who speaks Spanish, Mandarin, Russian, or many of

         18  the other languages that are spoken at the New York

         19  City TCC.  DOL has already laid off 45 bilingual

         20  employees at the New York City TCC and has

         21  eliminated 27 additional jobs, many of which were

         22  held by English proficient, or speak no English,

         23  workers, who are limited in English proficiency or

         24  speak no English already have a tougher time getting

         25  UI benefits, but the situation will be worse if
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          2  there are almost no bilinguist staff to process

          3  these claims.  If the New York TCC closes, claimants

          4  will face extended hold times, dropped calls or be

          5  dependant on a third party translation service.

          6  This problem is already occurring as the upstate

          7  TCC's  who are currently losing thousands of

          8  claimant calls a week.

          9                 When a claimant who does not speak

         10  English well, calls the TCC, they are connected to a

         11  translation service along with a TCC employee who

         12  remains on the line.  DOL management has admitted it

         13  is a cumbersome process that is not as effective or

         14  efficient as having bilingual staff members handle

         15  the calls themselves.  Such staff can handle all

         16  aspects of claims made by non English speaking

         17  claimants, verbal or written.  A translation service

         18  cannot.

         19                 DOL management has not explained how

         20  they will handle such claims, not accounting for

         21  additional costs, if they cannot attract enough

         22  bilingual employees to upstate New York. That is why

         23  over fifteen community groups in New York City, many

         24  of whom represent non English speaking residents and

         25  unemployment insurance claimants, have called on the
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          2  Governor to stop this ill advised closure.

          3                 It is also important to note that the

          4  translation service will cost an estimated $142.73

          5  an hour, the cost of the translation service and DOL

          6  employees versus $22.73 an hour, for State employees

          7  to do the same work by themselves, and this includes

          8  the cost of State employees benefits.  This

          9  additional cost that DOL is not accounted for in

         10  their saving estimates for closing the New York City

         11  TCC, and is likely to eliminate any savings the

         12  State may get from closing the New York City TCC.

         13                 The closure unfairly targets Blacks,

         14  Hispanics, Asians and other minority employees of

         15  the State Department of Labor, and ignores options

         16  that would save money and their jobs. The New York

         17  City TCC has a very diverse work force that reflects

         18  the diversity of New York City.  At its full

         19  staffing level, over 83 percent of the New York City

         20  TCC employees are non White, 48 percent of whom is

         21  black, 26 percent of whom are Hispanic and nine

         22  percent of whom are other racial backgrounds

         23  Seventy six percent of the employees are women.

         24                 This is direct contrast to the work

         25  forces of the Troy and Endicott TCC work forces
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          2  which is over 90 percent White, has significant less

          3  women as a percentage of their work force, and have

          4  a large number of non permanent hourly employees.

          5                 Under State and Federal law, Hispanic

          6  and other people of racial backgrounds are protected

          7  class employees.  I am not a lawyer, but my

          8  understanding is that the State cannot take an

          9  action that results in a discriminatory adverse

         10  impact on protected class employees, when it has

         11  other legitimate options to the action that has an

         12  adverse impact.

         13                 It is clear from the racial data in

         14  my testimony which was provided by the DOL

         15  management, that the closure of New York City's TCC

         16  and asking those employees to relocate to cities

         17  almost 200 miles away, will have an adverse impact

         18  on an overwhelming number of the non White employee

         19  protected class employees who work there.  This is

         20  particularly true when the Troy and Glendale TCC's

         21  have an overwhelmingly White work force including

         22  approximately 75 temporary hourly employees, the

         23  vast majority of whom are White.

         24                 The reason why DOL has hired

         25  temporary employees to work in the TCC's, is to have
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          2  the ability to increase and decrease the UI work

          3  force based on the UI work load, which generates its

          4  funding without impacting DOL's permanent employees.

          5  UI contingency funds are not a stable source of

          6  funding.  In essence, they fund the temporary hourly

          7  positions.  In the past, when UI administration

          8  funds have been reduced, DOL has reduced the number

          9  of temporary hourly employees to cover the loss in

         10  funds.

         11                 Currently the upstate TCC's employ

         12  approximately 75 temporary hourly employees.  Based

         13  on the $17 an hour average salary of these hourly

         14  employees, we estimate that in order to save the one

         15  million annually allegedly necessary to keep the New

         16  York TCC open, 31 of these employees will have to be

         17  terminated.  We believe that this portion should be

         18  taken, rather than closing the New York City TCC.

         19                 PEF believes that the State's failure

         20  to pursue this or other cost saving options and

         21  instead close the New York City TCC is illegal, and

         22  we have filed a lawsuit in the State Supreme Court

         23  to stop the closure.  It is very possible, however

         24  that by the time we win our lawsuit, the New York

         25  TCC would have already closed, and its employees
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          2  moved to other State agencies.

          3                 The New York City TCC closure is

          4  compatible with the Governor's and the legislative

          5  initiative to revitalize lower Manhattan.

          6                 In July, the legislature, the

          7  Governor and the New York City Mayor, reached an

          8  agreement on lower Manhattan's Marshall Plan, which

          9  will use tax exemptions, tax credits and 3.5 billion

         10  in remaining Liberty Funds to encourage more

         11  business to locate in lower Manhattan.  Therefore,

         12  it is ironic that the State is not doing everything

         13  it can to get employees to relocate to lower

         14  Manhattan when at the same time, it is removing 250

         15  State employees out of lower Manhattan.

         16                 If the New York City TCC were a

         17  private business that had 250 living wage jobs, the

         18  State would give that business more than a million

         19  dollars in tax exemptions and credit in order to

         20  keep that business in lower Manhattan.  In fact, the

         21  State and Federal government recently agreed to

         22  invest over 52 million in State and Federal funds to

         23  bring Bass Pro Shops to downtown Buffalo to create

         24  400 new jobs, most of which will pay minimum wage.

         25  Clearly the State can afford to invest one million
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          2  to keep 250 living wage jobs in lower Manhattan.

          3                 You will hear from other witnesses

          4  who work at DOL and who have reason to object the

          5  planned closure of the New York City TCC.  You will

          6  hear other, and better options to the closure.

          7                 When the facts are all considered,

          8  there will be no legitimate justification for this

          9  closure.  Unfortunately we can only conclude that

         10  the proposed closure is geographic patronage at its

         11  worst.  It cannot be allowed to occur.

         12                 Also, I am puzzled by Mayor

         13  Bloomberg's indifference to losing 250 jobs in lower

         14  Manhattan and why he has not intervened on behalf of

         15  our City, our businesses, the unemployment insurance

         16  claimants, especially those who do not speak

         17  English, and the overwhelmingly minority employees

         18  who work at the New York City TCC.  It is our hope

         19  that he will intervene with Governor Pataki after

         20  the City council passes Resolution 1083.

         21                 I thank you for all your efforts in

         22  keeping the New York City TCC open.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

         24  Baker.  Ms. Faucher?

         25                 MS. FAUCHER: Good afternoon.  My name
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          2  is Jennifer Faucher and I am the Region 10

          3  Coordinator for the New York State Public Employees

          4  Federation, representing over 6,000 members who work

          5  in Manhattan and the Bronx.

          6                 I would like to thank the City

          7  Council Committee, City Council Member Joseph

          8  Abbaddo (sic.) And his committee for holding this

          9  hearing, that is important to the workers, to the

         10  families and to the community of lower Manhattan.

         11                 My testimony today is two fold.

         12  First I want to talk about a promise.  On September

         13  11, 2001, the Governor of this great State, made a

         14  commitment to rebuild lower Manhattan and to restore

         15  the financial and economic luster this area once

         16  had.  Now, four years later, we continue to mourn

         17  the loss of the 34 PEF members who perished on that

         18  day.  We continue to watch small businesses close

         19  their doors and large corporations leave town.

         20                 The employees who work at the

         21  Telephone Call Center, at the Labor Department in

         22  lower Manhattan, continue to make their

         23  contributions to the local economy.  It makes no

         24  sense to unilaterally transfer these employees, more

         25  than 200 miles across the State.  Many of these
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          2  employees have more than 20 years of service with

          3  New York State.  They are skilled and experienced.

          4  They are multi lingual and ethnically diverse.  They

          5  are a reflection of the many faces seeking services

          6  of the Telephone Call Center every day.

          7                 President Roger Benson sent a letter

          8  to Mayor Bloomberg asking for his assistance in

          9  support of keeping these unemployment services in

         10  lower Manhattan.  The Mayor did not see fit to

         11  respond directly, but delegated the task of

         12  responding to the Office of Labor Relations.

         13                 I would like to share with you some

         14  of the personal stories of the Telephone Call Center

         15  workers.  As the PEF Regional Coordinator

         16  representing these employees, I have had the

         17  opportunity to meet with members and hear their

         18  stories about why they cannot move to Troy or

         19  Endicott.  The employees who testify here today, are

         20  just a small sample of the TCC employees.  Not all

         21  of the employees who wanted to be here to speak to

         22  you, were in a position to come today.  Here are

         23  some of the members that you missed.

         24                 SB has a mentally challenged adult

         25  son.  It took her many years to find the appropriate
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          2  services for him, so that they could both have the

          3  support they need.  If there is an emergency

          4  involving her son, she is in a position to get there

          5  fairly quickly.  In upstate New York, none of these

          6  services would be in place and he would be stuck in

          7  his home and quickly deteriorate.

          8                 EN is 52 years old with an 87 year

          9  old mother who has dementia.  EN cares for her with

         10  the help of her sibling who could not manage this

         11  task alone.  If EN had to move upstate, EN's mother

         12  recently suffered a stroke, and moving her, would be

         13  out of the question.

         14                 RPR is 58 years old and lives in a

         15  house his parents bought in 1929.  He had to take

         16  out a mortgage in order to buy out his siblings who

         17  live far away.  All he has here is his 74 year old

         18  brother.  He is terrified because he is a shy person

         19  and does not know a soul in either Endicott or Troy.

         20    The thought of having to move to keep his job, is

         21  extremely depressing to him.  A sense of security in

         22  his world has been ripped right out from him.

         23                 A Spanish speaking LSR, who has

         24  worked for the Department of Labor for 23 years has

         25  cardiac problems and high blood pressure.  Her adult
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          2  daughter who has two children, has systemic Lupus,

          3  which may mean she has to assume custody of her

          4  grandchildren if her daughter takes a turn for the

          5  worse.  Both she and her daughter see specialists

          6  who are only available in New York City.  She

          7  frequently accompanies her daughter to her doctor's

          8  visits.  None of this would be possible if she had

          9  to move upstate, as the Department does not provide

         10  enough money to move the entire family, only three

         11  thousand dollars.

         12                 The agency nurse reports that the

         13  visit from the Telephone Call Center employees for

         14  high blood pressure and depression, are increasing.

         15  When the move was announced on April 13, 2005, there

         16  was more than the usual amount of ambulance calls

         17  for medical emergencies by the Telephone Call Center

         18  employees that week.  Members complained of stress

         19  related disorders and having their sense of security

         20  and fairness pulled out from under them.

         21                 The Commissioner of Labor has claimed

         22  that she is saving jobs, not saving the brick and

         23  mortar of the TCC.  The question is for whom is she

         24  saving jobs?  Because she and the Governor already

         25  know, and are counting on the fact that these
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          2  employees cannot, and will not, move to Troy and

          3  Endicott.  These employees are hard working, decent

          4  human beings and citizens of New York City.  And

          5  they deserve to be treated better.

          6                 Members of the New York City Council,

          7  you need to ask the Governor why this job shift is

          8  allowed to take place, regardless of the fact that

          9  these cuts will cost the State more money to train

         10  new employees and cost the taxpayers millions of

         11  dollars in the lack of the appropriate adjudication

         12  of claims during this period.  To lay off permanent

         13  employees without the layoff of a single temporary

         14  employee Upstate, is unconscionable.

         15                 The testimony you hear today will not

         16  justify this decision on either an economic or moral

         17  ground.  Please assist us in calling for the

         18  Governor to rescind this bad choice for all New York

         19  City, especially lower Manhattan.

         20                 Again, I want to thank you for

         21  holding this hearing, for passing this resolution.

         22  It is something that is an issue that faces all of

         23  New York City, not just the working people at the

         24  TCC. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.
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          2  Faucher.  Just a couple of quick questions I may

          3  have for both of you before getting to questions

          4  from my colleague.

          5                 First, Ms. Baker, in your testimony?

          6                 MS. BAKER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You had

          8  mentioned, not that this Call Center was criticized

          9  for back log or anything like that, but you know,

         10  the New York State Department of Labor and the

         11  Governor are saying it is an economic reason for

         12  closing this Call Center, never have you heard the

         13  reason for closing it is because of the work

         14  product, or the service that they provide, correct?

         15                 MS. BAKER: Correct.  It has nothing

         16  to do with quality, about the quality of the work.

         17  Because, I must say, our members do an excellent,

         18  excellent job.  And I, for one, have to be very

         19  frank here today and this is just my opinion.  The

         20  members that work for the Department of Labor should

         21  never have to go through anything like this.   They

         22  should never have to think about moving to upstate

         23  New York.  They should never have to think about

         24  taking a demotion.  Because if there are other jobs

         25  available, and that is if there are other jobs
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          2  available in other agencies, they have to take a

          3  demotion.  Now, in this day and time where our

          4  economical situations and our rents are astronomical

          5  and the price of the cost of living rises every day

          6  and they have worked for this agency for 16 and 20

          7  some years, I think it is unconscionable of the

          8  Governor, and especially Linda Angelo, the

          9  Commissioner, to put our members through this kind

         10  of trial and tribulation.  It is uncalled for,

         11  because it has nothing to do with funding.  It has

         12  nothing to do with funding at all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And to your

         14  point in your testimony that you said that if the

         15  work product or the service provided by the Call

         16  Center is fine now, and that is not the reason they

         17  are closing.  You actually pointed out in your

         18  testimony that what they will do in result of

         19  closing the Call Center, is affect the service

         20  provided by the Call Center.

         21                 MS. BAKER: Yes, most certainly, most

         22  certainly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I also had a

         24  question, Ms. Baker, you mentioned a lawsuit that

         25  was filed in the State Supreme Court to stop the

                                                            59

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  closure.  When was that lawsuit filed, roughly?

          3                 MS. BAKER: In August, I forgot the

          4  exact date, but, August 2nd, I am sorry, August 2nd.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We all

          6  understand the need for rapid solution here since I

          7  do understand Thursday is the closure date.

          8                 MS. BAKER: Yes, it is the closure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So I wish you

         10  luck on that lawsuit.  Again, I am not optimistic,

         11  as you were in your testimony.

         12                 MS. BAKER: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Faucher, in

         14  your testimony, you mentioned that a letter went out

         15  to our Mayor and it was given also to the Labor

         16  Relations Commissioner, Hanley.  Do you know any

         17  kind of response that our office of Labor Relations

         18  gave to that letter?

         19                 MS. FAUCHER: Yes, I mean it was

         20  basically a very formatted letter that they would

         21  try to see if the could try and find jobs with the

         22  City.  There was nothing in terms of aggressively

         23  trying to work and put concrete solutions on the

         24  table.  I could probably provide you with a copy of

         25  that response.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If you could, I

          3  would appreciate that.  And I also appreciate your

          4  testimony regarding other employees who cannot be

          5  here today but obviously of their stories and I

          6  appreciate that.  And I appreciate all the workers

          7  who are here today to give testimony.

          8                 What is, and again, this is a

          9  question for both of you and for any other person

         10  who takes the witness stand, what is the, I want to

         11  be crystal clear on this, what is the New York State

         12  Department of Labor offering those who will have to

         13  be displaced? What exactly are they offering them in

         14  terms of job, in terms of housing?  What are they

         15  being offered?

         16                 MS. FAUCHER: The housing, nothing.

         17  What they have basically done is they have provided

         18  bus trips to Endicott, New York and to Troy, New

         19  York to give them a little tour.  I call it brain

         20  washing.  And I truly believe that they are looking

         21  to just go through formality.  There are very few of

         22  these members that are going to be able to leave

         23  their families, drop their mortgages and walk out of

         24  their houses.  Many of these employees are people

         25  that are passed the mid term of their careers, have
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          2  given more than 20 plus years to service of New York

          3  State.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Were they

          5  offered anything in terms of jobs?

          6                 MS. FAUCHER: Well, this is the

          7  process that is going to happen now.  It happened

          8  earlier with CSEA, but because our people are much

          9  more technically skilled, it is going to be

         10  extremely difficult for the State of New York to

         11  find over 100 jobs within the five boroughs.  It is

         12  not at a comparable salary.  And that is the thing.

         13  People right now, they have closed one phase of that

         14  department down and four of our members were forced

         15  to leave the beginning of September.  And they wound

         16  up in jobs that are below their current grade.

         17  These were people working in great 20 positions, as

         18  supervising LSR's and they were forced to take a

         19  traineeship (sic.) In some cases at other agencies

         20  that start off at a grade 14 and will end at the top

         21  level at a grade 18, which will be a total loss of

         22  two grades, plus whatever longevity, monies that

         23  they have collected for their years of service.

         24  Plus they will also lose any other kinds of

         25  increments during their traineeship.  This is not
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          2  comparable.

          3                 MS. BAKER: That is why I talked about

          4  the members of the TCC taking a demotion, because

          5  that is in essence, what it is, a demotion.  And it

          6  is no guarantee that the Civil Service Department

          7  will be able to find them the kinds of jobs that

          8  will pay them the same kind of salary that they have

          9  now.  So it is a hardship any way you place it,

         10  anywhere you place it, it is a hardship for our

         11  members.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree. Ms.

         13  Faucher, in your testimony, you eluded to that the

         14  Department is offering three thousand dollars, is

         15  that for real?

         16                 MS. FAUCHER: I believe that is the

         17  rate that they give for relocation pay.

         18                 MS. BAKER: Yes, that is the rate they

         19  give for relocation, just three thousand dollars.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: A whole three

         21  thousand dollars?

         22                 MS. BAKER: A whole three thousand

         23  dollars.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  Questions

         25  from Council Member Seabrook.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman. Ms. Baker, just a couple of questions,

          4  if you could answer.  Where is the relocation

          5  proposed?

          6                 MS. BAKER: To Troy and Endicott.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Troy and --

          8                 MS. BAKER: Yes, Troy, New York, and

          9  Endicott, which is further upstate, right outside of

         10  Binghamton.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: That, I am

         12  not -- two for me.  Is that a place where they lost

         13  some manufacturing jobs recently, Endicott?

         14                 MS. BAKER: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: That a

         16  business closed down, I think it was shoe

         17  manufacturing or something like that.

         18                 MS. BAKER: Something like that, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And Troy

         20  area represents, I guess that is near where Senator

         21  Bruno and others --

         22                 MS. BAKER: Yes, that is in Senator

         23  Bruno's district. And my understanding is that they

         24  really do not need a Call Center or more jobs in

         25  Troy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

          3                 MS. BAKER: Because Troy has been

          4  growing economically over the last few years.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And in the

          6  number of years that I can recall, we put a lot of

          7  subsidies in Troy.

          8                 MS. BAKER: Yes, you did.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And in

         10  Endicott, they have not built a prison there.

         11                 MS. BAKER: Not as of yet.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Not as of

         13  yet.  So, as a means of the economy, the shift, and

         14  so there is a dire need of jobs and since all the

         15  prisoners went further upstate --

         16                 MS. BAKER: Exactly.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: -- So I

         18  guess these jobs, I am just trying to figure out

         19  this movement.

         20                 MS. BAKER: Yes and their most job

         21  resource is the facilities, the hospitals.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And the

         23  hospitals?

         24                 MS. BAKER: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So they are
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          2  looking now -- and now, you raised the issue about

          3  somewhat of the ethnic breakdown of the people who

          4  are working here in this City.

          5                 MS. BAKER: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And the

          7  overlay of the ethnicity and demographics where they

          8  would be moving.

          9                 MS. BAKER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And if these

         11  people who have been on the job here has a sense, as

         12  a part of the Civil Service tradition, is to move

         13  up, to go into the middle class.  And now if they

         14  make this move, it is not at where they are, or

         15  better, it would be less.

         16                 MS. BAKER: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And they

         18  would be in a neighborhood that would not reflect --

         19                 MS. BAKER: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: -- The

         21  diversity of what they are used to now.

         22                 MS. BAKER: Right. It would not

         23  reflect that the diversity of any culture,

         24  primarily, it would not be anything familiar, that

         25  they would be familiar with.  It would not be like a
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          2  community that they are used to.  They are

          3  accustomed to living in now.  It would be a total

          4  relocation in the fact that everything familiar and

          5  all their support systems certainly would not be

          6  available.  Because it is an area that is not as

          7  urban as New York City.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So,

          9  therefore, it would be people who would, again, who

         10  tried to go up the ladder the right way and do all

         11  of the things that were so important to provide and

         12  to show a sense of people here in the urban area

         13  that you can make it, and then now to have this only

         14  life line, the Civil Service life line, snatched

         15  away --

         16                 MS. BAKER: Exactly.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: -- And for

         18  less.  But I would hope that we can convince the

         19  Governor that, the Governor, the Mayor, the Speaker

         20  and everyone agrees that the Speaker of the

         21  Assembly, as well agree, that their economic

         22  development is so important in lower Manhattan.

         23                 MS. BAKER: It is.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And that is

         25  the thrust and I find it very strange to be moving
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          2  jobs away from here to places where we have done a

          3  tremendous amount of service in Troy.  That I know,

          4  as a fact.

          5                 MS. BAKER: I know, too.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And that we

          7  have done quite a bit there.  And in Endicott, I

          8  understand that dynamics of losing manufacturing

          9  jobs, but that is not the trade that should be

         10  balanced on the backs of working people here.

         11                 MS. BAKER: Right, right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So I would

         13  hope that we will all pull together to do what has

         14  to be done.

         15                 MS. BAKER: And I certainly hope so

         16  because the Governor has been very silent on this

         17  issue and so has the Mayor of this City.  And

         18  certainly we need the intervention, real

         19  intervention to make sure that this move does not

         20  take place. Because it really can be rescinded.  And

         21  do the areas like Troy and Endicott really need

         22  jobs?  There is a way that they can do that, too.

         23  We must strike a balance here, and this is not

         24  balanced at all.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Well, I
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          2  would hope that there is a traditional labor

          3  response that all of labor could respond and so that

          4  people will see these faces and put, you know, faces

          5  to the numbers and that perhaps a mass call of

          6  people here to greet the Mayor to let them know that

          7  these are human faces that are attached to this,

          8  would be helpful.

          9                 MS. BAKER: This is not just about 250

         10  employees. This is about all the residents of New

         11  York City, because these are the people they service

         12  and have done a real, real good job and it is a very

         13  important job and have done their best, and past

         14  their abilities to make sure that they give the

         15  right kind of services to the residents of New York

         16  City.  So this is like a slap in the face to our

         17  Members who work for the Department of Labor, and I

         18  am afraid that in our assessment, that if we do not

         19  stop this trend, the State is going to continue to

         20  do more of this.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

         22                 MS. BAKER: Because it seems to be

         23  their plans that they keep moving the jobs out of

         24  New York City, and we cannot have this, and we

         25  should never stand by and let this happen.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Well, I

          3  would hope that we could convince the Mayor and

          4  whatever help.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          5                 MS. BAKER: And I appreciate all your

          6  efforts.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          8  Council Member Seabrook, Council Member Jackson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair.  First of all, Jennifer and Pat, I want

         11  to thank both of you for the leadership that you and

         12  PEF are displaying in this particular matter.  PEF

         13  has always been at the forefront of advocating for

         14  its members and filing a lawsuit alleging

         15  discrimination and desperate impact on New York

         16  City, I think that is the right track. But I got two

         17  questions I think, one is Pat, can you tell me what

         18  the impact is going to be on the residents of New

         19  York City that use that Call Center?  How will they

         20  be negatively impacted as far as from an economic

         21  point of view, if at all?  What is the negative

         22  impact by not having the Call Center hear in New

         23  York City?

         24                 MS. BAKER: We would be losing

         25  millions of dollars. And plus they would not be able
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          2  to --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But, I mean,

          4  I do not --

          5                 MS. BAKER: Their claims would not be

          6  processed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, is that

          8  how?  Because I did not see the connection on how we

          9  would be losing -- their claims would not be

         10  processed?

         11                 MS. BAKER: If you have a Call Center

         12  where people who have problems and are not

         13  proficient in English and have problems in

         14  navigating the system, of course it is going to take

         15  time for them to get their unemployment benefits.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Or they will

         17  stop calling?

         18                 MS. BAKER: They will stop calling.

         19  You know, because they do not have anyone there who

         20  can do the translation, who can help them through

         21  the system, and as I stated in my testimony, calls

         22  are being dropped already.  Thousands of calls are

         23  being dropped.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thousands?

         25                 MS. BAKER: Thousands.  So that means
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          2  that there are thousands of people whose claims are

          3  not being processed, because you do not have the

          4  skilled people there to make sure to help them to

          5  navigate the system.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And so and as

          7  a result of calls being dropped, or peoples claims

          8  not being processed, and in essence, they are not

          9  getting their unemployment insurance benefit, their

         10  check, what is the maximum unemployment insurance

         11  check per week now?  What is that?  Four hundred and

         12  five dollars a week. So, if you have thousands of

         13  calls being dropped and thousands of claims not

         14  being processed timely, it would be times that over

         15  the average amount that a person is receiving

         16  unemployment insurance, that means they are not

         17  getting their money in a timely manner. Some people

         18  could be being evicted and losing their homes --

         19                 MS. BAKER: Of course, it is a domino

         20  effect.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- They could

         22  go on social services and so in essence, they fall

         23  on the system --

         24                 MS. BAKER: Exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- For
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          2  support.  Is that correct?

          3                 MS. BAKER: That is very correct.  And

          4  we have other members here from the DOL that work in

          5  this department and will give you more information

          6  on that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now you

          8  indicated, thank you, Jennifer, you indicated that,

          9  in your testimony, that Roger Benson, our President,

         10  sent a letter to Mayor Bloomberg.

         11                 MS. FAUCHER: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And it was

         13  referred to the Labor Relations Commissioner.  Is

         14  there a labor dispute here in this particular

         15  matter?  I did not, my understanding, I do not think

         16  it is a labor dispute, it is an economic situation,

         17  supposedly, what the State is saying.  It is about

         18  jobs, is that correct?

         19                 MS. FAUCHER: Yes, that is correct and

         20  I guess it is just the rise to the level of urgency

         21  on the part of the Mayor.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But it is not

         23  a labor dispute, is it?

         24                 MS. FAUCHER: No, it is not, but that

         25  was the body that responded to our President.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I see.  Okay.

          3                 MS. FAUCHER: That is all I can say.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: In your

          5  opinion, is that the correct place for it to go?

          6                 MS. FAUCHER: No.  I think that is

          7  nice for the Mayor to maybe tap the resources at

          8  some point, but if the letter was sent to our Mayor,

          9  I would think that a letter should come back from

         10  our Mayor.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         12                 MS. FAUCHER: I do not think we are

         13  asking a lot.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Pat, you know

         15  you talked about members would be, if they find a

         16  job here in New York City, that they would be not at

         17  the same grade level that they are.  And the average

         18  employee at the TCC Call Center is what grade, 16?

         19                 MS. BAKER: 16.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What is the

         21  salary range? Are these employees earning $150

         22  thousand dollars a year?  And why is everybody

         23  laughing?

         24                 MS. BAKER: We are laughing because --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Are they
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          2  earning $100 thousand dollars a year?

          3                 MS. BAKER: No, no.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Ninety

          5  thousand, like I earn?

          6                 MS. BAKER: No, contrary to

          7  everybody's belief --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What is the

          9  salary range for grade 16?  Does anybody have a --

         10                 MS. BAKER: Probably thirties, thirty

         11  thousand, forty thousand.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Excuse me?

         13                 MS. BAKER: You heard me correctly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What did you

         15  say, I am sorry?

         16                 MS. BAKER: I said in the thirties,

         17  and in the forties.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thirty to

         19  forty thousand dollars?

         20                 MS. BAKER: Yes, it is not a lot of

         21  money when you look at it, is it?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, if you --

         23  it is not a lot of money --

         24                 MS. BAKER: No, it is not.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- As far as,
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          2  so you are saying that if in fact they accept other

          3  jobs, they would be earning less than that?

          4                 MS. BAKER: Sure, exactly, and then

          5  have to go and traineeship for two years.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: A traineeship

          7  for two years for the job that is going to be

          8  earning less money?

          9                 MS. BAKER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I read in the

         11  New York, I think, the Daily News today, that the

         12  number of applicants for the NYPD exam has dropped

         13  by about 35 percent because the salary for recruits

         14  has been downgraded from $32 thousand dollars to $25

         15  thousand dollars, so you have less applicants.

         16                 MS. BAKER: Sure, there is no

         17  incentive.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I just

         19  thought maybe that I did not know, I did not know

         20  what the salary range for grade 16 is, now that you

         21  have told me and you are saying that now if

         22  employees accept jobs, it is going to be at a lower

         23  title, and they are going to be in a traineeship for

         24  two years and earning less money?

         25                 MS. BAKER: Yes, there is always that
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          2   --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That is the

          4  only option that they have other than to relocate

          5  their families to Endicott or Troy, New York?

          6                 MS. BAKER: That is the only option

          7  they have.

          8                 MS. FAUCHER: And especially with the

          9  supervisors who are grade 20, and they make a little

         10  bit more money, but they have to earn that, that

         11  came by taking promotional exams, getting on the

         12  list, showing that you have mastered your area and

         13  your discipline and then getting an appointment.

         14  And now that opportunity, if they were to be offered

         15  a job as a trainee, because they are putting

         16  everyone in the same boat, it is clearly a total

         17  disaster, because these people will never be able to

         18  catch up at this point in their careers.

         19                 MS. BAKER: It is starting over.  It

         20  is practically starting over.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I want

         22  to thank you both for coming in and I appreciate

         23  your testimony.  Mr. Chair, thank you.

         24                 MS. BAKER: Thank you.  Thank you all

         25  for having us.

                                                            77

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

          3  very much Council Member Jackson, Ms. Baker and Ms.

          4  Faucher, thank you very much for your time and

          5  testimony.

          6                 Next two witnesses, Sherry Kane from

          7  UNITE HERE. Sherry, please step up.  And Andrew

          8  Stettner, from National Employment Law Project.  Mr.

          9  Stettner?

         10                 Thank you for being here today, if

         11  you would please just state your name and your

         12  affiliation, then give your testimony.

         13                 MS. KANE: Can you hear me?  Hello?

         14  Okay.

         15                 My name is Sherry Kane.  I am here on

         16  behalf of May Chen, who is the Vice President of

         17  UNITE HERE.  We represent garment workers, laundry

         18  workers, hotel and restaurant workers.

         19                 I am going to read her testimony.

         20                 My name is May Ying Chen and I am the

         21  Vice President of UNITE HERE and the Secretary-

         22  Treasurer of the New York Metropolitan area Joint

         23  Board of UNITE HERE.  Our Joint Board represents

         24  thousands of apparel workers in the New York area,

         25  most of whom are immigrants.
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          2                 UNITE HERE is strongly opposed to the

          3  closure of the New York City Telephone Claim Center.

          4    Our members work hard, contribute to New York's

          5  economy and pay taxes.  Because of globalization,

          6  our City's garment industry, as you well know, is

          7  not as strong as it was years ago.  Today's garment

          8  industry is seasonal, and therefore many of our

          9  members must access unemployment benefits at some

         10  time during the year.  Many garment workers speak

         11  limited English.  The phone system is difficult

         12  enough to navigate if you are proficient in English,

         13  imagine if you do not speak English well.  Workers

         14  with limited English should not be penalized because

         15  of language issues.

         16                 Unfortunately, this seems to part of

         17  a continuing attack on the right of immigrants to

         18  access services in our City. In 2000- 2001, our

         19  union fought the decision to call down the

         20  unemployment office at Park Place.  Many of our

         21  Chinese speaking members lived and worked in lower

         22  Manhattan and visited the center. After months of

         23  protests and legal action, in person centers for

         24  Chinese speaking applicants were permitted to remain

         25  in Brooklyn and Queens  These centers have been very
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          2  important for our members, especially after

          3  September 11th, when the garment industry in lower

          4  Manhattan was devastated.  Our union helped

          5  thousands of garment workers access services at that

          6  time, and today's garment workers continue to use

          7  the Telephone Claim Center, to help support their

          8  families, when they are out of work.

          9                 New York City is a City of

         10  immigrants, and that is one of our strengths.  Our

         11  City suffered greatly on 9- 11, and the government

         12  officials at all levels, made a commitment to help

         13  rebuild lower Manhattan.  To do away with 250 jobs

         14  and greatly reduce the ability of New York's workers

         15  all over the City to apply for unemployment

         16  benefits, is unconscionable.

         17                 The translation service that is

         18  expected to replace the bilingual workers at the

         19  center, will be expensive and inconvenient.  The

         20  bilingual staff, who work at the Call Center,

         21  understand the unemployment system and can help

         22  workers through this complicated process.  It is

         23  unrealistic to believe that workers will be able to

         24  get the same help applying for unemployment

         25  benefits, with almost no bilingual staff.
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          2                 I join the City Council in calling

          3  upon Governor Pataki and the New York State

          4  Department of Labor, to keep New York City's

          5  Telephone Claims Center open.  This issue is of

          6  vital importance to the members of our immigrant

          7  communities.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

          9  Kane.  Mr. Stettner?

         10                 MR. STETTNER:  I am Andrew Stettner

         11  and I am the Policy Analyst at the National

         12  Employment Law Project.  NELP is a national policy

         13  organization that specializes in unemployment

         14  benefits, and we are members of a newly formed

         15  coalition to keep the TCC in NYC.  That includes

         16  about 15 immigrant and unemployment advocacy

         17  organizations.

         18                 We are testifying today because of

         19  the impact the closing of the TCC is going to have

         20  on jobless workers in general, and immigrant working

         21  families in particular, our clients and

         22  constituents.  Put simply, it is going to make a bad

         23  situation worse.  As it is, New Yorkers have a

         24  pretty hard time claiming unemployment pay.  In

         25  2005, less than 40 percent of the jobless, those who
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          2  were out of work, even collect, and that is compared

          3  to 50 percent or more in New Jersey, Connecticut and

          4  Pennsylvania.

          5                 And the situation is even worse for

          6  Latinos and other people of color.  Latinos, for

          7  example, were 30 percentage points less likely than

          8  Whites to collect UI in 2001- 2002, and this was the

          9  last study.  And, you know, this is a real problem,

         10  because unemployment benefits are crucial for these

         11  low wage communities. These are people that are more

         12  vulnerable to losing their job, and are more likely

         13  to experience some major family problems when they

         14  miss even one paycheck.

         15                 This New York City TCC has been the

         16  prime point of contact for families from the five

         17  boroughs.  It is the first place, when you call the

         18  1- 800 number, that your call goes to.  And as you

         19  have heard, there is a plan to consolidate all of

         20  these functions upstate.

         21                 I want to just talk a little bit how

         22  this closure is going to impact out clients and

         23  constituents when they apply for UI.  As you heard,

         24  when the TCC was really staffed up after 9- 11,

         25  before this downsizing began, we had Spanish,
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          2  French, Chinese, Mandarin, Cantonese, Korean, Greek,

          3  Hindi, Filipino and Tagalog, all at staffing the

          4  center.  After the closure and relocation, the one

          5  that has already begun, we have already lost a lot

          6  of employees who were downsized, and afterwards, you

          7  are really not going to have this bilingual

          8  capacity.

          9                 And already, we are seeing the

         10  closure impact our clients.  Spanish speakers,

         11  really for the first time are hearing these

         12  recordings that there is no Spanish speaker

         13  available, that if they want to go to English, they

         14  can press one, then go back to English, or to call

         15  back at a different time.  We are experiencing, what

         16  we had not in awhile, people calling and just

         17  getting busy, or having their calls, what they call,

         18  dropped, really, it is being hung up on after a long

         19  time of being on hold.  And although we are not

         20  contort, we have not had the hard evidence.  We have

         21  heard, you know, real reports of thousands of calls

         22  not, in total, not being answered.

         23                 And, so what this means with the

         24  difficulty to speak to a Spanish speaking person,

         25  for example, the immigrant workers are now less
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          2  likely to speak to a native speaker of their

          3  language. And to put that into context, you know, a

          4  native speaker is really important in the

          5  unemployment benefit application.  Unemployment

          6  insurance eligibility really hinges on some very

          7  detailed circumstances.  What happened really, in

          8  the days that you were separated?  And although it

          9  is really easy for it to be different whether one

         10  person might think you were fired, the other person

         11  might think that you quit, and a third person might

         12  think that you were laid off.  And what actually

         13  happened is going to determine whether you get your

         14  UI benefits.  And if a claimant story is

         15  misunderstood, because of not speaking to a native

         16  speaker, they are going to be wrongly denied help,

         17  or in many cases, found to have made a fraudulent

         18  statement if they are misunderstood.

         19                 In the absence of the bilingual

         20  staff, we are going to go to a third party telephone

         21  translation service.  To know what this means, and

         22  although expensive, you lose, it is lost in

         23  translation, really.  The language line, you have

         24  one person who speaks the language, speaking to the

         25  worker, and then there is a person who speaks
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          2  English and knows the UI law.  And it is a three way

          3  conversation that can easily lead to lots of

          4  misinterpretations and misunderstandings.

          5                 What is interesting is we have heard

          6  in the last couple of days that the State is hiring

          7  a few new part time speakers of Spanish, upstate, to

          8  handle the increased volume.  And it is pretty

          9  ironic for the State to be laying off all these New

         10  York City residents who have a direct linguistic and

         11  cultural understandings of the experience of our

         12  clients of immigrant workers.  At the same time,

         13  they are going to spend additional dough, money, to

         14  hire and train new staff.  And that is why we really

         15  think that renewing the lease, at the Hudson Street

         16  location, is the right decision.

         17                 You know, as May said from UNITED, or

         18  her statement said, the low wage immigrant working

         19  families contribute so much to the City, and they

         20  really get very little in return, in terms of wages

         21  and benefits.  It is only fair that these families

         22  really have an equal shot to collect unemployment

         23  benefits that they have earned through their work.

         24  And we really need the State to be doing more, not

         25  less, to make applications fair, for limited English
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          2  speakers.  We need translations of documents which

          3  we do not have yet, consistent translators at

          4  hearings, and the retention of the qualified

          5  bilingual staff.

          6                 One thing that we are seeing, which

          7  was referred to a little bit, and we hope to not be

          8  here again, but, the closing of the TCC really is

          9  part of a trend.  It started with the closing of the

         10  local unemployment offices.  It is now going to the

         11  TCC and we are worried, as advocates, that it is

         12  going to start with the next closure of the rest of

         13  the space there at 345 Hudson, which includes the UI

         14  Appeals Board, and we are going to see our clients

         15  going to have to go to telephone hearings, which are

         16  much more difficult for low wage clients to win a

         17  telephone hearing because it is harder to present

         18  documentation.  In other states, we see it is very

         19  hard for low wage clients to win telephone hearings,

         20  as opposed to in person hearings.

         21                 So, for all these reasons, we really

         22  are hoping.  We commend the Council for passing this

         23  resolution and really urge you to do more to try to

         24  step this up to another level, to influence the

         25  Governor and the State legislature to intervene, you
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          2  know, really, before it is too late.  Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Stettner.  Any questions?  Council Member Jackson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.  I

          7  am glad that both of you highlighted in your

          8  testimony, the absence of appropriate staff,

          9  assuming that the Department of Labor finishes out

         10  their plan to relocate the TCC up to Endicott and to

         11  Troy, New York.  I think you testified that they

         12  plan on, in the absence of appropriate staff, that

         13  knows the language, they are going to contract with

         14  a translation service.  Does anybody have any idea

         15  the cost of that?

         16                 MR. STETTNER: I think we heard the

         17  figures as 150 an hour or something along those

         18  lines.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I am sorry,

         20  say that again?

         21                 MR. STETTNER: I think we heard a

         22  figure earlier, I think it was one hundred and forty

         23  two an hour.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: $142 dollars

         25  an hour.  And I think you said that the person who
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          2  needs, who is calling the TCC who speak their

          3  language to a translation service that is somewhere

          4  else, that supposedly knows their language.  It may

          5  not even be the person who, that their primary

          6  language, it could be their second or third language

          7  that they learned in school.  Is that correct? But

          8  they supposedly know that language.

          9                 MR. STETTNER: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And they

         11  would then, wherever they are, speak to a Department

         12  of Labor employee, I assume, in Endicott or Troy,

         13  New York --

         14                 MR. STETTNER: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- Who speaks

         16  English --

         17                 MR. STETTNER: Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- And be

         19  able to address the needs of that person in New York

         20  City via a translation service that could be in

         21  Europe, in Thailand, in China, in Taiwan, or

         22  California or Mexico or Canada and be communicating

         23  with someone in Endicott, New York, as to whether or

         24  not they are entitled to benefits and all the

         25  nuances like that.  Is that correct?
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          2                 MR. STETTNER: Right.  And not only

          3  that, it is not economical in the sense that the

          4  call, our clients only see this, the application

          5  takes much longer.  It is going to take two or three

          6  times the mount of time.  So you are tying up the

          7  Labor Department's staff for a long period of time

          8  and you are paying for the extra translator.  Now,

          9  we are not in opposition, if you need that service,

         10  if when the person calls there is no one that speaks

         11  Korean available.  But for Spanish, for example, it

         12  seems a real travesty that in a State like New York,

         13  Chinese, when there are lots of speakers, people are

         14  willing to take jobs in the Department of Labor, and

         15  if you kept it in New York City, they are already

         16  working there.  It seems like a really big waste of

         17  money.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I do know

         19  that the Chinese population in New York City, number

         20  800,000, and the two primary languages in Chinese,

         21  are Cantonese and Mandarin.  So clearly you have the

         22  numbers here in New York City in order to hire

         23  someone from New York City.  And I do know, as I

         24  live in northern Manhattan, which is majority

         25  Hispanic, and as a former President of the community

                                                            89

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  school board, we used to do translations from

          3  English to Spanish, and Spanish to English.  And I

          4  do know that it takes twice as long or even two and

          5  a half times as long in order to address someone and

          6  do the translation.  So from a time point of view,

          7  it is very, very time consuming and we are spending

          8  at a rate of $142 dollars an hour or more.

          9                 Something is not right with this that

         10  has been spelled out, and so I am glad that I did

         11  not know that is how the translation service was

         12  going to be used, in trying to do this. And so if

         13  you look at the cost factor on all of these things,

         14  it does not seem like it is beneficial in order to

         15  close the TCC.

         16                 MR. STETTNER: Right.  And we also,

         17  out of curiosity, we talked to administrators in

         18  other states and how they handled this problem, you

         19  know, of how you deal with the shrinking budget and

         20  pretty much everyone unanimously said, you do it by

         21  you manage your part time hiring.  When you have

         22  more money, you hire more temporary workers.  When

         23  you have less money, you hire less temporary

         24  workers.  No one really said that we would lay off

         25  permanent Labor Department staff that are working in
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          2  Call Centers. It seems pretty unprecedented as a way

          3  of managing what is really a pretty small drop off

          4  in the amount of Federal funds coming for this

          5  purpose.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

          7  very much.  Thanks both of you for coming in and

          8  giving testimony.  I look forward to working with

          9  you to try to solve this particular political

         10  problem. Do you see this, other than just say,

         11  political problem?  I am very serious when I ask

         12  that question.

         13                 MR. STETTNER: I think it just speaks

         14  to the current Labor Department's commitment to

         15  service its working families.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Commitment or

         17  the lack of commitment?

         18                 MS. KANE: Lack of committment.

         19                 MR. STETTNER:  Well, it speaks to

         20  their lack of commitment, it speaks to the level

         21  equipment, to the chagrin of Path members, but the

         22  cutbacks and wage an hour division and worker's

         23  comp., labor certification,  you know, we see it all

         24  across, that they just do not, the management of

         25  this Department of Labor really is not all that
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          2  serious about, you know, its mission of serving

          3  working families.  And so we got to step up the

          4  pressure and you know, try to remind them why this

          5  is really going to damage those who are trying to

          6  collect these benefits.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

          8  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         10  Council Member Jackson.

         11                 Ms. Kane, just a quick question on

         12  your testimony. You had eluded to other Call Centers

         13  in Brooklyn and Queens, is that correct?

         14                 MS. KANE: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you know how

         16  they are working out?

         17                 MS. KANE: Sorry, they are walk- in

         18  centers.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: They are walk-

         20  in centers, okay I just wanted to make clear on

         21  that.

         22                 MS. KANE: So a lot of our members

         23  actually prefer to speak to someone face to face but

         24  you know, it is very difficult if you speak, in our

         25  case, a lot of our members speak Chinese.  So it is
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          2  very difficult if you are a Chinese speaker, they

          3  prefer to speak to someone face to face or have a

          4  Call Center, speak to someone who speaks Chinese as

          5  a native language.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Along those

          7  lines, though, as Chair of this committee, I will

          8  express my opinion to both Governor Pataki and Mayor

          9  Bloomberg that Call Centers, out of boroughs, if

         10  they can be located out of boroughs, would serve the

         11  people just as well, so if we are able to retain the

         12  workers here in New York City and service people

         13  here in New York City, we should look to the outer

         14  boroughs if it is an economic reason why this Call

         15  Center is closing.

         16                 Thank you very much for your time and

         17  testimony today.  Thank you.

         18                 The next panel of three, Brad

         19  Goodwin, a worker, I understand, Brad Goodwin, Ana

         20  Pujols, and Helen Farrell.  Please step forward.

         21                 Thank you very much for being here

         22  today.  If you could just kindly state your name and

         23  your affiliation, and then give your testimony.

         24                 MS. FARRELL: My name is Helen

         25  Farrell.  Okay.  My name is Helen Farrell and I work
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          2  for the Department of Labor as a Labor Service

          3  Representative.

          4                 Good afternoon Chair Addabbo and

          5  honorable members of the panel.  I want to thank you

          6  for inviting me to testify at the City Council

          7  hearing concerning the closure of the Telephone

          8  Claim Center located at 345 Hudson Street in New

          9  York City.  My name is Helen Farrell, again and I

         10  work as the Labor Service Rep., adjudicating claims

         11  for jobless Americans.  I have been employed by the

         12  Department of Labor for 28 years.  I started as a

         13  secretary and worked my way up the ladder to my

         14  present position as a Labor Service Rep., which I

         15  have held for the last 17 years.

         16                 When the Department of Labor

         17  representatives came to the Telephone Claims Center

         18  on April 13, 2005, with specific instructions from

         19  Commissioner Linda Angelo to close us down, the

         20  staff felt betrayed.  We were told when we were

         21  drafted from the local offices that the Telephone

         22  Claims Center was the wave of the future and if we

         23  wanted to keep our jobs in the Unemployment

         24  Insurance Division, this is where we will have to

         25  work.  Five years later at the Telephone Claims
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          2  Center, I am being told my job is being relocated

          3  upstate and if I want to keep it, I have to relocate

          4  to Troy or Endicott in upstate New York, which is

          5  approximately 200 miles from New York City.

          6                 Governor Pataki and his campaign,

          7  promised upstate constituents jobs, but he did not

          8  tell them he would steal these jobs from hard

          9  working Americans in New York City, and give it to

         10  them.  What he should have told them was that he

         11  will create jobs upstate for them, not take the item

         12  numbers from the staff in the New York City

         13  Telephone Claims Center and give it to them upstate.

         14  This Governor failed to create new jobs for his

         15  constituents. Instead he is stealing jobs from

         16  working mothers and fathers.  He is taking food and

         17  shelter away from children, grandchildren,

         18  grandparents, elderly parents and hard working

         19  residents of New York City.

         20                 The closure of the Telephone Claims

         21  Center will adversely affect the claimants of the

         22  five boroughs here in the City.  The clerks and

         23  labor service representatives upstate, cannot handle

         24  the volume of calls they are now receiving since the

         25  Commissioner fired the last permanent employees on
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          2  September 9, 2005.  Claimants have personally called

          3  me complaining about problems they are having in

          4  reaching the telephone number, which is 888- 209-

          5  8124, to the telephone, to the Unemployment

          6  Insurance Claim Center, either in Troy or Endicott.

          7  These claimants have called with frustration in

          8  their voices, stating they are getting recorded

          9  messages telling them to call back because the wait

         10  time to speak with a labor service representative,

         11  is over fifteen minutes. Claimants have said that

         12  when they call back, the calls fall off again and

         13  again, because the wait time is in excess of this

         14  fifteen minutes.  Claimants have called stating

         15  every week the Labor Department put on a new

         16  recorded message that they are trying their best to

         17  handle all their claims.  I personally told the

         18  claimants to have called, me to contact the State

         19  and local representatives, and make complaints

         20  against the Department of Labor.  Does anybody care

         21  that the unemployed is now running up their phone

         22  bills by trying to reach the Labor Department?

         23                 The public, who the Unemployment

         24  Insurance Program was designed to help, during the

         25  period of unemployment, is being short changed by
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          2  Commissioner Linda Angelo's new initiative to

          3  relocate the jobs to Troy and Endicott in upstate

          4  New York.  Why is 35,000 calls per week dropping

          5  off?  Did they not anticipate this mess?  Who gets

          6  the shaft here?  It is the claimants.  Why are

          7  claimants claims not being adjudicated according to

          8  Federal guidelines within three weeks after the

          9  claimants file?  The Department is violating labor

         10  laws and policies by trying to maintain two Claim

         11  Centers to handle all the claims in New York State.

         12                 The New York City Telephone Claims

         13  Center was the largest center servicing the five

         14  boroughs in the City.  We, the staff, are New

         15  Yorkers and we understand the people of New York

         16  City, their lingoes and all.  We service them best.

         17                 When claimants become frustrated with

         18  the process of calling the 888- 209- 8124 number to

         19  file a claim, and they find themselves having

         20  trouble getting in to the system to file a claim,

         21  they give up filing an unemployment insurance claim,

         22  and it begins to look like unemployment insurance

         23  has decreased in the City.  Far from it.  These are

         24  now the chronic unemployed, because no statistics

         25  are being kept on these claimants.  Commissioner
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          2  Linda Angelo, let us not play politics here.

          3  People's livelihood are at stake.

          4                 I am here to speak on behalf of the

          5  claimants who cannot speak for themselves.  Let us

          6  be realistic, 150 staff members who are left at the

          7  Telephone Claim Center may be losing their jobs, but

          8  the reality is, that thousands of claimants are also

          9  losing out.

         10                 I want to thank you for hearing my

         11  testimony.

         12                 MS. PUJOLS: Hi, good afternoon.  My

         13  name is Ana Pujols and I am a Spanish speaking Labor

         14  Service Representative in New York City.

         15                 I am going to express my feeling

         16  about how I feel with this change.  I am a married

         17  woman and I have two daughters, age 23 and 25.

         18  Along with my husband, my youngest daughter and my

         19  mother, live in my house.  My other close relatives

         20  live in New York City, as well.  I have lived in New

         21  York City since migrating from the Dominican

         22  Republic over thirty years ago, and I have several

         23  ties to my community.

         24                 Working for the Department of Labor

         25  for the past 17 years, my job duties have been
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          2  determining eligibility for unemployment insurance

          3  benefits, based on fact finding, and in accordance

          4  with the New York State Unemployment Insurance Law

          5  and interpretation.  I also conduct fact finding

          6  interviews, make non profit determinations and

          7  process requests for hearings and appeals for

          8  customers and employers.  Due to the loss of our

          9  agency, our service representative for the past two

         10  to three weeks, I have also taken on clerical

         11  duties.

         12                 The decision of closing the Telephone

         13  Claim Center in New York City made by the

         14  Commissioner of Labor, will affect my personal life,

         15  as well as my family's.  If I relocate, I will be

         16  separated from my family, including my 70 year old

         17  mother who depends on me.  My husband cannot move

         18  with me because he owns a grocery store located in

         19  the Bronx.  He bought the store about two years ago

         20  and if he sells the store on such a short notice, he

         21  will lose profit.  He does not want to sell the

         22  store because he saved for money, for many years to

         23  accomplish this.  He will be out of a job in a new

         24  community.

         25                 I would also like to mention that the
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          2  Hispanic community is affected by this decision.

          3  They have problems contacting the Telephone Claims

          4  Center in Troy and Glendale.  If they are even

          5  connected, there are not Spanish speaking

          6  representatives to assist them.

          7                 During my years of service, I have

          8  experienced many changes within the Department, such

          9  as transferring within different offices and

         10  departments.  This relocation of 200 miles will be

         11  the most drastic change I would endure in my life,

         12  in my career.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. GOODWIN: Hello.  My name is Brad

         14  Goodwin.  I am a Labor Service Representative.  I

         15  started working with the Telephone Claims Center

         16  just after the time of the attack on the Trade

         17  Center.  And when I started working there, I changed

         18  my careers and felt trepidation coming to the

         19  downtown area.  But I felt a commitment to work

         20  there, and that I was truly doing good at what I was

         21  doing at my job.  It is very disheartening to me, at

         22  this moment, to be here, and to be testifying in

         23  regards to trying to maintain my employment with the

         24  Department of Labor, when after showing a lot of

         25  commitment to those who I thought that I was
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          2  helping, working many hours overtime, putting in a

          3  day when, and listening to a lot of the stories of

          4  what was going on around you, and also having fear

          5  that things could happen to you riding on the train

          6  and subject to attack.  But I felt as though I was

          7  doing the right thing.  And at this moment in time,

          8  to feel like I am just in the wind now because

          9  someone says that we do not have the finances to

         10  help me, or maybe the economy has changed and we do

         11  not really need you as much, I feel as though that

         12  there is much that is left undone, in regards to

         13  helping the workers at the Telephone Claims Center.

         14                 The fact that we have many agencies

         15  and institutions in this City that we can also be

         16  working at, we could be working at many of the State

         17  office buildings that I know have, that we have

         18  discussed with people, and they have said that they

         19  have space, rather than to change our lives and to

         20  send us to Endicott or to Albany, which for many of

         21  us, is not a very viable alternative.  I have

         22  children, and I have discussed this with my family,

         23  and they do not want to relocate.  We do not have

         24  family members who are there that we could be close

         25  to.  And then at the same time, what is to assure me
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          2  if I made such a move, that the same thing will not

          3  happen?  And the safeguards that are at least I feel

          4  that is around me in the City, I will not have any

          5  of it if I move to Albany.  So where is the

          6  stability at?  This is one of the reasons why I came

          7  to the Department, because I felt a sense of

          8  stability working for the government.

          9                 So, it is something that needs to be

         10  considered.  It is something that I have to thank

         11  you, as those who are listening to our problems,

         12  that you are doing something.  And it has been very,

         13  as I said, disheartening that there are

         14  representatives of ours starting from the Governor

         15  down, who does not see what the impact of this

         16  action is doing to the workers here.  So at least by

         17  you passing the resolution, you have my gratitude

         18  for everything that you are doing for us.  But we

         19  need something to happen because as time goes by,

         20  more people will have to make the choice of trying

         21  to feed their families and go to places that they do

         22  not necessarily want to be.

         23                 Now, I have studied in school and I

         24  have wanted to do things that are associated with

         25  the job that I have now.  I am doing, working with
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          2  the labor laws, and these are some of the things I

          3  want to do in that field.  Now if the government

          4  comes and makes me an offer where I have to now work

          5  in the Department of Motor Vehicles, or if I have to

          6  work in health care or whatever, if I do not take

          7  that offer, then I am out of a job, I am out of

          8  consideration.  I have to do whatever it is that

          9  they say I have to do.

         10                 So, it is something that I feel as

         11  though we are not receiving as workers, the type of

         12  consideration that we deserve, and we need someone

         13  who is going to change this, or make a change. And

         14  we need all of the government resources that you can

         15  bring to bear, and I am glad that you have made

         16  suggestions as far as alleviating the taxes and the

         17  different proposals that you are making in regards

         18  to this.  It is something that is very much needed.

         19  And as a government, I think that our workers are

         20  deserving of any type of resources, of all types of

         21  actions that are needed to correct the situation.

         22                 So, I thank you very much for all of

         23  your attention to this matter.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Goodwin.  Mr. Goodwin, Ms. Pujols, I want to thank
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          2  for being here today.  You represent obviously the

          3  workers who are at issue here, and who are being

          4  displaced, and you are putting a face on the issue

          5  and on the problem.  And I appreciate that, and we

          6  acknowledge the situation you are being put in.

          7                 My question for Ms. Farrell, that 888

          8  number, what number is that to?

          9                 MS. FARRELL: That is the number to

         10  the Telephone Claims Center, the one and only number

         11  that the claimants can call and get to someone in

         12  the Department.

         13                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

         14  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: To continue in English, press

         15  one.  For important information on filing a new

         16  claim for unemployment insurance, press one.  Our on

         17  line self service application is the fastest most

         18  convenient way to file for unemployment insurance.

         19  Our secure website is www. --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That is helpful,

         21  huh?

         22                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

         23  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: -- .NY.US.  Most applications can

         24  be completed on line without having to speak to a

         25  claims specialist.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Hello?

          3                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

          4  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: For claim related issues, you can

          5  complete additional questionnaires on line instead

          6  of by mail.  Those individuals who are instructed to

          7  call to complete their application, will experience

          8  less time on the telephone.  To fast track your

          9  application, hang up and file on line at

         10  www.labor.state.ny.us.  If you do not have internet

         11  access, or prefer to file by telephone, press nine

         12  to go to the main menu.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, let us

         14  hear.

         15                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

         16  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: For quality assurance, your call

         17  may be monitored.  Please choose one of the

         18  following selections.  To enter an extension, press

         19  one. To file a new claim or ask questions about a

         20  claim you have already filed, press two.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Two?

         22                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

         23  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: If you filed your claim and want

         24  to claim benefits for last week, find out when your

         25  check was mailed, or get general information about

                                                            105

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  unemployment insurance, please call our Tell Service

          3  Line. This number, by looking in the phone book, is

          4  the New York State Department of Labor Tell Service.

          5

          6                 MS. FARRELL: It is ringing?

          7                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

          8  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: To continue in English, press

          9  one.  The New York State Department of Labor is an

         10  Equal Opportunity Employer provider and services are

         11  available upon request to individuals.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: This is

         13  ridiculous.

         14                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

         15  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: Choose one of the following three

         16  options.

         17                 MS. FARRELL: I do not believe it.

         18                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

         19  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: On a new claim, press one.  To

         20  complete a claim you have started on the web or

         21  telephone, press two.  For other questions, press

         22  three.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: This is

         24  ridiculous.  Three? All right, everybody says three.

         25                 TELEPHONE CLAIMS CENTER RECORDED

                                                            106

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  TELEPHONE MESSAGE: Please enter your social security

          3  number on the touch tone pad now.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I am not putting

          5  my social security number in there.  I draw the line

          6  there.  But, that is absolutely embarrassing, that

          7  is absolutely ridiculous to have somebody with such

          8  an important issue to wait for that long and like we

          9  have mentioned many times before, many people just

         10  get so frustrated and hang up, or do not understand.

         11                 MS. FARRELL: Exactly.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And that is why

         13  the Call Center is so sorely needed.  So again, I

         14  thank this panel for again eluding to and shedding

         15  light on that issue.  Thank you very much.

         16                 MS. FARRELL: You are welcome.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         18                 Our next panel, a panel of three,

         19  Evarist Nicholas, please step forward.  Mario Henry?

         20    And Gordon Stack.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Mr. Chair, I

         22  just want to say. I want to thank you for moving us

         23  through that process of calling because what you

         24  showed me and everyone else here, they were laughing

         25  because they know how, not funny, but how difficult
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          2  it is in order to move through that system.  And

          3  when it says you can go on line, as you know, the

          4  majority, not majority, but many, many individuals

          5  do not have computers to go on line.  You know, so I

          6  think that the display by calling in, showed how

          7  difficult it is just to navigate the system.  And

          8  quite frankly, people will get frustrated and just

          9  hang up.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Jackson.  And again, not to make a

         12  mockery of this hearing or of this system, but I am

         13  guessing that the service that we get in the Call

         14  Center in lower Manhattan is much better than that

         15  service on the phone.  So, like I said, we are

         16  showing you a desperate need to keep that Call

         17  Center open.  So, thank you very much.

         18                 I want to thank this panel for being

         19  here today.  If you would just state your name and

         20  your affiliation and give your testimony please.

         21                 MS. NICHOLAS: Okay.  My name is

         22  Evarist Nicholas. I am a labor savers labor

         23  representative of New York City TCC.  I do not have

         24  a written testimony today, but it can be provided at

         25  a later time.
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          2                 The reason why I am sitting here, I

          3  had decided not to testify because of my own

          4  frustration on what has been going on for the last

          5  several months.  I did testify in front of the

          6  Senate, I waited to see what would happen with that.

          7    I came to the City Council, they tell us, well the

          8  City Council is not the legislative body that can do

          9  anything, but I am a New York City resident.  I

         10  belong to New York State, but New York City, when

         11  they say "I Love New York", they forgot to put the

         12  City at the end of it, because that is the only part

         13  of the State that I love.  So I have no intentions

         14  of moving.  But at the same time I have to keep a

         15  roof over my head.

         16                 When Jennifer Faucher testified, she

         17  mentioned someone in their name, EN.  I am EN.  I am

         18  the person with the 87 year old mother.  I am also

         19  the person with a lot of health issues of my own, so

         20  therefore, going through a health system and finding

         21  someone that can provide benefits for me, would be

         22  very difficult.               But I have put in 27

         23  years working for New York State.  I work for New

         24  York State Department of Labor because I was in the

         25  midst of this one other time.  I worked for mental
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          2  health for 19 years.  Rather than going on

          3  unemployment, I started working for the Department

          4  of Labor.  So rather than being unemployed, I

          5  serviced the unemployed.  I grew to love my job.  I

          6  am 52 years old.  I spent four years in the State

          7  University, I did what I was supposed to do to get

          8  myself to the step that I am at this point. For

          9  someone to blatantly say to me, either you pick up,

         10  move 200 miles away from the life that you know, or

         11  you take a downgrade, is appalling.  I did not work

         12  this hard to be this close to age of retirement for

         13  someone to tell me that I need to go take a job and

         14  try to move up a ladder again.  The last three years

         15  of someone's working life is the period that they

         16  take in to fact when it comes to your pension.  Why

         17  should I do that at a lower salary, if I have worked

         18  this hard to be where I am?

         19                 Several things were mentioned here by

         20  others that testified and that is why I felt that I

         21  needed to be here.  We talked about efficiveness

         22  (sic.) and how efficient the offices were.  Just

         23  prior to the announcement on April 13th, out of the

         24  three Call Centers, we were the top.  This is our

         25  thanks.  Three thousand dollars is what Jennifer
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          2  Faucher mentioned in her testimony.  I want to

          3  clarify that, up to three thousand dollars. We are

          4  told that we have to find three different movers,

          5  the lowest is what they will help pay for.  They are

          6  assuming that I have the money to put out in the

          7  first place.  Living here, or anywhere else, I do

          8  not know any place that I can walk into, in terms of

          9  renting or buying a home, and someone says to me,

         10  well, the rent is seven hundred dollars, just hand

         11  me seven hundred dollars.  They usually ask you for

         12  three months in advance.  They are assuming that my

         13  life had me prepared for that.

         14                 We talked about promises.  I worked

         15  in the local office which I happen to prefer,

         16  because I like looking at the people that you are

         17  asking me to judge.  When someone tells me that yes,

         18  I am looking for a job, and I happen to work in

         19  Sheepshead Bay, and they came sitting at my desk in

         20  a bikini, I could nine times out of ten tell you

         21  they were not going for a job,  unless it was for a

         22  lifeguard.  So, we knew that in terms of somebody

         23  was in to you, it was easy for me to judge that one.

         24    At this point, on the telephone, that is another

         25  aspect of fraud that this brings in, because you
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          2  cannot tell what people are, and what they are

          3  doing.

          4                 We were told this is the wave of the

          5  future.  If you do not move to these offices, God

          6  knows if you will have a job. Well, here I am, six

          7  years later.  I did what you told me to do.

          8                 I am also an immigrant.  So I

          9  believed what this country told me.  And I am

         10  sitting here as someone who has worked for their

         11  government for 27 years and I am sitting in a Hall

         12  and I am thinking, I looked above my head and

         13  everything that I believed this government was

         14  about, is written above your head.  Where is that?

         15  Three offices, two upstate, one downstate, the

         16  office downstate primarily, what they call us,

         17  minorities.  When you remove that one office, where

         18  is it, that it says, by the people? The government

         19  no longer looks like the people.  That is a problem.

         20                 We talked about translation services.

         21    When I, someone calls, I live in Brooklyn, I am a

         22  Trinidadian. Trinidadians sing when they speak.

         23  Jamaicans, they are another issue.  I want to know

         24  where is New York State or Mr. Governor or our

         25  Commissioner getting a translator for the Jamaican
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          2  that is going to call her?  I live among people that

          3  I can understand what they are saying.  We are

          4  talking about Hispanics.  New York City has

          5  Hispanics.  This is a very broad word.  I come from

          6  Trinidad. Part of my family comes from Venezuela.

          7  My uncle comes from Panama.  When my parents all get

          8  together, my family gets together, I hear different

          9  things happening.  How does the person who learned

         10  Spanish in a Binghamton High School be able to

         11  translate from someone that comes from these various

         12  countries.  That is a disservice that the government

         13  is giving to the people.  I am sitting here because

         14  I am a New York City resident, and people ask me to

         15  vote for them.  I am sorry that Diane Savino left,

         16  but if I had to move, that is where I would move, to

         17  Staten Island.  Because there is an official that

         18  stood up when we called.  We have been knocking on

         19  doors, since the 18th of April, and no one hears us.

         20  You hear.  New York City has how many millions of

         21  people?  And a government official could not stand

         22  up and say, and I am talking about the person across

         23  the hall.  I listened to this man's commercials

         24  every day talking about he is for the people and he

         25  listens to us.  Well, you are going to hear
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          2  testimony from someone and I happen to be there when

          3  she called him.  I want to hear how he is going to

          4  answer that one.

          5                 I thank you for what you have done

          6  thus far.  But I hope that this goes a little

          7  further than where it is right now. Because I do not

          8  want anyone else to tell me they cannot do anything

          9  about this.  Because this is not just my job, this

         10  is for all of the New Yorkers that call in every day

         11  and cannot get anyone to speak to them.  And when

         12  you ask the question, Chairperson, if New York City,

         13  is that what you heard?  The answer to that is, no.

         14  The reason why you are hearing that now is because

         15  we are no longer in existence, as far as they are

         16  concerned.  All of the calls are now going upstate.

         17  They cannot handle it.  That is why you are getting

         18  what you are hearing now.

         19                 And I thank you for giving me this

         20  opportunity.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

         22  Nicholas for your testimony.  Thank you very much.

         23                 MR. STACK: Thank you for this

         24  opportunity to talk. My name is Gordon Stack and I

         25  am a supervisor at the New York City Unemployment
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          2  Telephone Claims Center.

          3                 The State of New York, for reason

          4  that do not stand up to even modest scrutiny, has

          5  chosen to wage war on thousands of vulnerable

          6  citizens who file unemployment claims, not to

          7  mention its own workers.

          8                 When the State decided to eliminate

          9  the New York City Call Center, they guaranteed that

         10  there would be a shortage of trained staff for years

         11  to come.  The repercussions did not take long to

         12  show up.  Call intake staff has been so reduced that

         13  it has become a nightmare for claimants attempting

         14  to get through either to open a new claim, or to

         15  find out the status of their current claim.  Up to

         16  80 percent of the calls are turned away by the

         17  system, 80 percent.  This is an outrage.

         18                 Every day I receive frantic calls

         19  from claimants who I have helped in years past who

         20  had held on to my direct phone line.  They tell me

         21  of hours, even days, spent hitting the redial button

         22  on their phones.  Their grocery money, their rent,

         23  their mortgage, all depend on being able to get that

         24  call through. Making that connection to an agent is

         25  literally a matter of life or death and the State
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          2  has callously decided to make that connection a near

          3  impossibility.  The desperate unemployed are showing

          4  up in droves at job service offices, only to be told

          5  that no one there can help them, that the phone is

          6  their only recourse.

          7                 And it gets worse.  To try and get

          8  some kind of handle on this out of control call

          9  load, the Department has taken to putting 20 claims

         10  adjustors per Call Center upstate on the phone doing

         11  intake work, three days a week.  This amounts to

         12  taking from Peter, to pay Paul.  You see, if those

         13  examiners are not doing their regular job of

         14  adjudicating claims, then many people cannot begin

         15  to expect a check in the mail.  They go for weeks

         16  without knowing if they are even eligible for

         17  unemployment.   For these unlucky folks, the torture

         18  is two fold.  First, wait for months to learn if you

         19  are eligible, then if you are, and there is the

         20  slightest problem with your claim, join the army of

         21  people trying unsuccessfully to get through.  Join

         22  the redial brigade.

         23                 Starting this Fall, the New York

         24  office, which already has lost its processing staff,

         25  will start losing its adjudicators in droves.  Which
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          2  means our load, which goes to the upstate

          3  adjudicators who are already over burdened, who

          4  already are dividing their time between adjudicating

          5  claims and answering the phones.  How long will it

          6  take now for cases to be adjudicated? Three months?

          7  Six?  There will be new adjudicators hired upstate

          8  when the hiring freeze is off, whenever that will

          9  be.  But since it takes two to four years to train a

         10  new adjudicator, what are the claimants supposed to

         11  live on?  Monopoly money?  Meanwhile, in an effort

         12  to cope with this disaster, and here is where it

         13  gets really incredible, the Department has come up

         14  with a "solution" that is 100 percent illegal and

         15  worse, that slams another important group,

         16  businesses.

         17                 On September 14th, the Department

         18  told staff, they ordered staff at all three Call

         19  Centers, that they will no longer be adjudicating

         20  certain issues.  Issues that must be adjudicated

         21  under the law.  But we were instructed to ignore the

         22  law.

         23                 Here are some wonderful examples of

         24  our new protocols.  Claimants who are working and

         25  collecting at the same time, will not only be
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          2  allowed to continue to do so, but they will not be

          3  required to pay back the money.  Just let this sink

          4  in for a moment.  An employer notifies us that John

          5  Smith is working full time while collecting, and we

          6  toss that employers letter in the trash.  So the

          7  employer will continue to be charged for the

          8  benefits that John Smith is collecting.  Jane Doe

          9  writes a letter to the unemployment office and

         10  states that she is not looking for work because she

         11  does not feel like it.  Her letter will be thrown in

         12  the garbage and she will continue to collect, and

         13  her employer will continue to be charged.  If Jane

         14  Doe shows up on our computers as being an illegal

         15  alien, we will ignore that fact and pay her

         16  unemployment anyway.  What the heck?  And her

         17  employer will be charged.  If John Smith sends us a

         18  letter stating that he has been out of the country,

         19  enjoying a vacation in Cancun for the last four

         20  months and certifying via internet from Cancun, the

         21  whole four months, guess what?  He will not be asked

         22  to give back the money received and furthermore, he

         23  will continue to be allowed to certify from Cancun

         24  and collect checks.  And furthermore, his employer

         25  will continue to be charged.
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          2                 Now let us take a deep breath and

          3  think about the repercussions to the business

          4  community.  Thousands of businesses suddenly forced

          5  to pay unemployment benefits to people who are not

          6  entitled.  Some of the big businesses will survive

          7  this nightmare, but the small businesses with slim

          8  profit margins, barely surviving, the businesses

          9  that are the backbone of our economy, how many of

         10  these will be forced into bankruptcy?  Hundreds?

         11  Thousands?  And how will this affect New York

         12  State's economy?  It is not hard to guess.

         13                 So now we have an economic

         14  catastrophe compounding the human one, and an

         15  economic catastrophe that will then destroy untold

         16  numbers of jobs, creating more unemployed people.

         17  And let us keep in mind that this crisis, and it is

         18  a crisis, actually it is more like a catastrophe, in

         19  the unemployment system, is taking place during good

         20  economic times.  Think for a second what will happen

         21  if the economy takes a down turn, such as when gas

         22  prices go up, or a natural disaster strikes.  My

         23  colleague next to me will be addressing that issue.

         24                 This is a political job shift and it

         25  has clearly been established, especially at the last
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          2  hearing that we had, that the State is going to lose

          3  money by this move.  There is no question, therefore

          4  that it is a political move entirely, and not an

          5  economic one.  It is a political shift to move jobs

          6  away from Democratic New York City and into upstate

          7  Republican controlled areas.

          8                 Council members and the general

          9  public, we need your assistance to implore Governor

         10  Pataki not to hurt legitimate claimants, the

         11  business community and loyal State workers by

         12  proceeding with the closure of the Department of

         13  Labor's New York City Telephone Claim Center.  Thank

         14  you very much.

         15                 MR. HENRY: Mr. Chairman, members of

         16  the City Council.  My name is Mario Cattano Henry,

         17  retired Unemployment Insurance Program Manager,

         18  formerly employed at the New York State Department

         19  of Labor Claims Call Center at Hudson Street.

         20                 I did not come here to criticize the

         21  leadership of this department, but rather to ask the

         22  leadership of this department and State to step

         23  outside the box and find the means to keep this

         24  office open and sustain this important service for

         25  the people of the State of New York.
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          2                 You have already heard statements

          3  indicating that the remaining Call Centers cannot

          4  service the unemployed in this State who are filing

          5  for benefits.  This is happening at a time of an

          6  unusually low level of unemployment nationwide.  If

          7  the remaining Call Centers cannot handle the current

          8  load, what will happen if the rate of unemployment

          9  goes up?  There is every reason to believe that the

         10  rate of unemployment in this nation and State, will

         11  not remain at its present level.  We live in a

         12  capitalist system, a market economy.  There are

         13  periods of expansion and contraction.  Just as the

         14  economy is expanding now, in time it will contract.

         15  We should also keep in mind that the American

         16  economy has some real problems.  Household income

         17  has been stagnant for the last five years, and the

         18  percentage of the population living in poverty has

         19  grown.  The resulting short fall of consumption

         20  could cause a slow down in the economy.  Gasoline

         21  and oil prices continue to spiral, posing a further

         22  threat of reduced consumption.  The real estate

         23  market is believed by many economists to be

         24  dangerously inflated.  And if a bubble bursts, this

         25  could also cause a decline in investment.  The
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          2  tragedy in the Gulf coast could also have adverse

          3  effect on the economy with so many people losing

          4  their jobs and savings.  An even greater threat to

          5  the continued expansion of the economy is the

          6  massive trade deficits and massive Federal budgetary

          7  deficits.  Together they have caused a record

          8  decline of the value of the dollar in the world

          9  market.  Paul Volcker, former chairman of the

         10  Federal Reserve Board, among others, believe these

         11  deficits will have a crippling impact on the

         12  economy.

         13                 It is probable, therefore, that at

         14  some point in the immediate future, there will be an

         15  increase in the level of unemployment and remaining

         16  Claims Call Centers will be unable to handle the

         17  load.  It is extremely short sighted to shut down

         18  one third of the UI operation, predicated on the

         19  misguided hope that the economy will continue to

         20  expand.

         21                 The closing jeopardizes this vital

         22  service to the people of this State.  I ask the

         23  leadership of this State to step outside the box and

         24  find a solution that preserves the Unemployment

         25  Insurance Program.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          3  much, Mr. Henry. Once again, I want to thank Ms.

          4  Nicholas for choosing to step forward and give

          5  testimony because I think your story is a very

          6  interesting one and one that I am glad is on the

          7  record of this City Council hearing.

          8                 Mr. Stack, Mr. Henry, thank you for

          9  giving us the perspective of the business and

         10  economic impact.  There is a human story here about

         11  displaced families and what workers have put in to,

         12  and what they are not getting back from New York

         13  State.  And obviously there is a detrimental and

         14  economic impact to be seen if this Call Center does

         15  close.

         16                 Any questions from my colleagues?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Mr. Chair, I

         18  do not have any questions, but I do want to thank

         19  the panelists for coming forward. And hearing

         20  directly about your personal situation, you make it

         21  even more real.  Even though I do understand the

         22  reality of the situation, but explaining like you

         23  did, your personal situation, it makes it home even

         24  more so.

         25                 And Mario, thank you.  As you said,
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          2  you are retired.

          3                 MR. HENRY: Involuntarily.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Involuntary.

          5  And I remember you from the Department of Labor many

          6  years ago when I worked for the Department of Labor

          7  myself from 1975 to 1989 and when I was a PEF

          8  representative.  Coming forward, expressing your

          9  point of view from both of you, as supervisors, it

         10  is very, very important.  And I truly believe that

         11  the State of New York is not going to save money and

         12  it is a political situation to transfer jobs upstate

         13  in order to address the needs of that area and as

         14  one of the previous panel representatives talked

         15  about, if there is a lack of jobs upstate, then

         16  develop jobs.  Do not steal, steal jobs from New

         17  York City.  And basically, that was very, very

         18  clear.  What they are doing is stealing jobs from

         19  the New York City area, from the employees in New

         20  York City, and having a negative impact on the

         21  constituents that are being serviced, and including

         22  the employees. And that is not the way to develop

         23  upstate New York.

         24                 So I want to thank all three of you

         25  for coming in. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          3  much Council Member Jackson.  To this panel, thank

          4  you very, very much for your time.  Thank you.

          5                 Our last panel for today's hearing, a

          6  panel of two, Jeannette Sierra, please step forward,

          7  and Angel Crespo.

          8                 I want to thank you both for being

          9  here today.  And if you would please state your name

         10  and then give your affiliation and your testimony.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 MR. CRESPO: Bueno tarde.  Good

         13  afternoon.  There we go again.  Bueno tarde.  Good

         14  afternoon.  My name is Angel Crespo. I am a Labor

         15  Service Representative for the New York City TCC.  Before

         16  I get to my testimony, I would like to clarify two

         17  things.  One, everybody has spoken in regards to the

         18  translation services and how this would hinder the

         19  relationship between actual claimant and the LSR who

         20  is taking the call. However, they have all failed to

         21  mention one aspect of this service.  How are the

         22  claims and decisions going to be translated to the

         23  Spanish speaking individual?  You can always have

         24  another person on the other line give you what the

         25  person is saying. However, according to MLC, the
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          2  Spanish speaking person is entitled to a

          3  determination in Spanish.  How is that English

          4  speaking person going to translate that document

          5  from English to Spanish if he does not know?

          6                 Furthermore, when you speak Spanish,

          7  something that Ms. Nicholas made a mention to, there

          8  is an immense number of cultural backgrounds,

          9  Spanish, Mexican, Dominican, Venezuelan.  In Puerto

         10  Rico, you say, bis cocho (phonetic).  That is a

         11  piece of cake.  Mexico, you say bis cocho, you are

         12  referring to the female genitalia.  They are very

         13  different things.  Very different. Puerto Rico, you

         14  say bicho, you are referring to a male's genitalia.

         15  Mexico, other countries, you say the same thing, you

         16  are referring to an insect.  Totally different

         17  things.  More related to our field.  In the

         18  Dominican Republic, which we have somebody here, you

         19  say cuatro del velacho (phonetic), means High

         20  School.  Puerto Rico, you say del velacho, you have

         21  got a forth year of college.  How is somebody who

         22  has learned English in High School or who has been

         23  raised in another part, not surrounded by the

         24  cultural diversity that we have, going to be able to

         25  translate this?  There is no way possible.
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          2                 Now, most of my testimony would

          3  actually be mental, I am horrible at reading.

          4                 All right.  Today you will hear many

          5  reasons why the Department of Labor should remain in

          6  New York City.  However, out of all of these reason,

          7  you will receive the most important one, for the

          8  people and the community in New York City, not

          9  necessarily for our benefit.  Yes, we have been

         10  offered other jobs.  The people that will be

         11  hindered the most, is the community in New York

         12  City.

         13                 Not keeping an office here in New

         14  York, will mean that the needs of the people of the

         15  City will not be met. Particularly those of non

         16  English speaking community.  The State is closing an

         17  office where the greatest cultural and language

         18  diversity is located.  The languages that are spoken

         19  in this office which enabled us to handle the claims

         20  in a more efficient manner, are not offered in the

         21  two offices located in upstate.  Both of these

         22  combined, not just one office, but both of these

         23  combined. This will result in a delay of claims, a

         24  higher cost of service because of the use of a

         25  language line.  As it has already been said, that
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          2  would be at approximately $142 dollars per minute,

          3  excuse me, per hour.

          4                 Also, a more rapid depletion of the

          5  Unemployment Insurance Fund, due to non recoverable

          6  over payments because of inaccurate determinations,

          7  caused by the lack of comprehension.  To this, you

          8  may add what we were just recently informed.  A vast

          9  number of these calls are being dropped.  In a

         10  meeting we just had, we were given a number of

         11  approximately 35,000, whether these be per week, per

         12  month, it is a vast number of calls that are being

         13  dropped.

         14                 Furthermore, the impact this will

         15  have on the claimant has already been seen in

         16  documents sent to the claimants, translations, which

         17  are totally inadequate, and most of all incorrect,

         18  which will result in the claimants total lack of

         19  understanding.  This coupled with the dropped calls

         20  will leave these claimants in limbo.

         21                 If you think the claimants will be

         22  the only ones affected by this, you are greatly

         23  mistaken.  Recently we have been given an order to

         24  basically ignore a great deal of issues which were

         25  normally adjudicated, and as was said by Mr. Stack,

                                                            128

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  this is the order given, which is a total violation

          3  of law and policy.

          4                 Such issues include availability,

          5  capability, days worked earned, work and collected

          6  benefits, amongst others.  To this you add that if

          7  the employer protests these charges through the

          8  normal procedure of sending back a form sent to

          9  them, this will not be considered a valid protest,

         10  and the issue would be ignored. Once we have an

         11  issue, either at the beginning of the claim, the

         12  employer is sent a letter.  Through this letter, the

         13  employer formally protests the claim, whether this

         14  be an LO400 which is the initial letter sent to the

         15  employer, when the claim is established, or a 334,

         16  which is an additional issue which has risen

         17  throughout the claim.  If the employer sends this

         18  letter, this letter will be totally dismissed,

         19  chalked away and not paid any attention to, which

         20  would hence result in a non recoverable over

         21  payments also.

         22                 How would this be?  The claimant told

         23  you that he was working and collecting.  Claimant

         24  works and collects, let us say for all 26 weeks, at

         25  405.  That is approximately $10 thousand dollars.
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          2  Claimant told you at the beginning of the claim that

          3  he was doing this.  You cannot charge the claimant.

          4  Where would the money be coming from?  UI fund.

          5                 What this will do is cause the faster

          6  depletion of the Unemployment Insurance Fund, due to

          7  again, non recoverable over payments.  And for the

          8  employer to pay monies that in some circumstances,

          9  the claimant was not entitled to.

         10                 The State contends that the closure

         11  of this office is due to a loss of funds and the

         12  need to save monies, not taking into account the

         13  above stated, the cost of training a functional LSR,

         14  which would approximately be two years, up to three

         15  thousand dollars, which is what the State would

         16  reimburse us for relocation fees.  The cost of

         17  transportation, lodging and food for two to three

         18  trips to the upstate area, both Endicott and Troy,

         19  which one took place in August, was it?  The other

         20  should be taking place sometime in October and there

         21  is a third scheduled for the Spring, which we have

         22  not been given a date.  Another to be scheduled in

         23  October and ---

         24                 And it does not take a mathematician

         25  to realize you add up the three thousand dollars per

                                                            130

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  person that would be moving upstate.  You add up the

          3  depletion of funds due to unemployment insurance

          4  funds which would be non recoverable because of us

          5  just ignoring a great deal of our cases.  You add up

          6  the fact that you have a language line which costs

          7  money.  You have a person who does not understand

          8  Spanish at its totality, which costs money.  And

          9  when it comes into training, a properly trained LSR,

         10  you have to include the time the LSR is putting in,

         11  the time the supervisor is putting in to train that

         12  LSR, the time the manager is putting in because of

         13  problems with that LSR, and the time other

         14  coworkers, not just mangers and supervisors, but the

         15  time other coworkers must take out of their own time

         16  to answer questions, asked by these LSR's that are

         17  not trained in what they are doing properly, and who

         18  have many doubts.

         19                 All of this, you add all these

         20  numbers up and it does not take a mathematician or a

         21  genius to understand there are no savings.

         22                 Thank you very much for your time.  I

         23  ask for your help and not personally, I do not ask

         24  for your help personally.  I ask you to help the

         25  people of this City who deserve the help.  They
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          2  deserve to have their claims handled in a proper

          3  manner.  They deserve to have them handled in an

          4  efficient manner and most of all, they deserve to

          5  have them handled in a timely manner and in their

          6  language.  Thank you very much.

          7                 MS. SIERRA: Hi, I would like to thank

          8  you for holding this hearing and allowing me to

          9  speak today.

         10                 My name is Jeannette Sierra.  I was

         11  employed by the New York State Department of Labor

         12  as an agency service representative, unemployed as

         13  of September 9, 2005.

         14                 The message I would like to convey is

         15  not about me. It is about the lives of those

         16  affected by broken promises that have led to the

         17  impending closure of the New York City Claim Center.

         18

         19                 As a service representative, I had

         20  various responsibilities.  These responsibilities

         21  included taking claims, answering questions

         22  regarding issues or concerns on claims, posting

         23  issues for review, establishing benefit rates,

         24  releasing checks and explaining claimant

         25  responsibility in regard to obtaining their
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          2  benefits.

          3                 Between the time of the announcement

          4  of the closure and our lay off date of September 9,

          5  2005, the offices upstate handled calls that would

          6  normally be taken by the staff in the City, these

          7  calls and claims placed by fellow City residents.

          8  During this time, I saw so many things that

          9  disturbed me, and heard so many cries and

         10  complaints, that I not only lost sleep over the

         11  future of myself and those around me, but the future

         12  of the claimants who would suffer the most.

         13                 During those months, I heard stories

         14  of those who could not feed their family and whose

         15  rent was past due.  I received correspondence which

         16  included eviction notices, as claimants waited for

         17  their checks.  As I check the claims and reviewed

         18  paperwork handled in the upstate offices, I found

         19  many persons waiting needlessly.  Many who were told

         20  they did not qualify, did.  However the person

         21  upstate had not correctly calculated their wages.

         22                 There were others that thought they

         23  were disqualified because they did not receive their

         24  check.  They were actually eligible and their check

         25  mailed out to incorrect addresses.  The claimants
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          2  did not give the wrong address, but had their

          3  addresses noted incorrectly by the claims taker,

          4  unfamiliar with Manhattan, the Bronx, Staten Island,

          5  Queens, Brooklyn and their many streets.

          6                 Then there were others waiting weeks

          7  for issues to be resolved on their case, issues that

          8  were not even assigned because they were not posted

          9  by the upstate clerk.  Then you have thousands of

         10  requests by claimants and employers which were just

         11  filed, and never addressed, because of inability to

         12  handle the load.  Employers were wrongly charged

         13  because the wrong employer was attached to the

         14  claimants claim.  And then you have calls that

         15  cannot be handled, transferred to us, because of

         16  inability to understand the person and their accent.

         17                 In the midst of this chaos, you have

         18  a small group of clerks trying to fix these errors

         19  and help those in need, while they themselves are

         20  worried about their future ability to pay their rent

         21  and feed their own families.  These clerks consisted

         22  of a mostly minority group of single mothers, heads

         23  of households and those close to retirement age.

         24                 How were we treated during the months

         25  leading to September 9th?  What is our story?  Other
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          2  jobs were offered to us with other State agencies.

          3  Most were given the so called option to become

          4  unemployed or move upstate, did take jobs with other

          5  State agencies.  Four came back, stating it was

          6  better to be unemployed than subjected to the abuse

          7  they received at the other agencies. Two came back

          8  after abuse and threats of failing probation.  These

          9  workers had been with the Department of Labor for an

         10  average of 20 years, with no write ups.  Words

         11  cannot express the hurt and worry I personally saw

         12  in their faces when they came back.  Those that did

         13  not come back, complained of being unhappy and were

         14  torn with returning and becoming unemployed or

         15  staying in their unpleasant situation.

         16                 Is this the reward the State gives

         17  its workers?  Is this the service that those in

         18  need, unemployed City residents deserve to get?  Is

         19  this all that we are worth?

         20                 The Mayor has asked during his

         21  campaign that we speak to him.  I actually tried

         22  that.  After several weeks of calling his radio

         23  show, I finally got through.  When asked who was

         24  next, the announcer stated my name to the Mayor.  I

         25  guess I am someone that his "speak to him" campaign
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          2  did not apply to because his response was to bypass

          3  my call and go to the next caller. Words cannot

          4  express how I felt.  Here I am surrounded by hard

          5  working people ready to lose their jobs, living in

          6  the City ready to lose a vital resource, and the

          7  Mayor actually chose not to address the issue.  What

          8  message does that give?  Perhaps he is not to blame,

          9  but who is?

         10                 Bloomberg stated in a recent speech,

         11  I believe elected officials must be accountable for

         12  their promises.   Pataki stated that he is committed

         13  to rebuilding and revitalizing lower Manhattan.  And

         14  he takes pride in jobs staying in New York City, not

         15  leaving in droves as they were before he entered

         16  office.

         17                 Yet, despite these promises, I am

         18  sitting before you, a 32 year old single Hispanic

         19  New York City native, unemployed for no legitimate

         20  reason.  I am sad, I am hurt.  Not for myself,

         21  because I know eventually I will be okay.  But over

         22  the fact that the issue has to be brought before

         23  you.  Over the fact that such injustice can be done

         24  without the accountability.  Where is the

         25  accountability?  How long will such injustices
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          2  persist with so many in need pushed to the side

          3  fending for themselves, because these actions were

          4  allowed?

          5                 Many may worry if a disaster happens

          6  in New York City, that the Department of Labor will

          7  not be able to handle the load without this office.

          8  I am extremely concerned about the future, but am

          9  more concerned with the present.  The Department of

         10  Labor has demonstrated in recent months that the

         11  existing load cannot be handled properly.  And many

         12  are already suffering because of it.  Forget

         13  worrying about a disaster occurring in New York

         14  City's future, it is occurring now.  However, one

         15  advantage is that we have warning, and it can be

         16  stopped, but action must be taken now.  If not, when

         17  something does happen to New York's economy in the

         18  future, what answer can we give when needed services

         19  are not where they should be?  Who will answer to

         20  their broken promises made to New York and its

         21  people?  What answer can we give to pacify them?

         22                 If someone finds an answer that is

         23  good enough, please let me know.  Maybe it can

         24  pacify me and all the coworkers and claimants

         25  already left behind.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

          3  Sierra.  Well done.  Ms. Sierra, first, how long did

          4  you work at the Call Center?

          5                 MS. SIERRA: I left private industry

          6  to work with a more secure job, and I was there for

          7  about a year and a half.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: One year, a year

          9  and a half.

         10                 And Mr. Crespo, how long were you

         11  there?

         12                 MR. CRESPO: I have been there since

         13  approximately 1999, September 1999.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  When were

         15  you given notice that the Call Center would be

         16  closing?

         17                 MR. CRESPO: That would be April 15th.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In April, right?

         19                 MR. CRESPO: April 15th, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  Any

         21  questions?  Council Member Jackson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I thank both

         23  of you for coming in and giving testimony,

         24  specifically about this and I think that you have

         25  laid out the impact, that closing this Telephone
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          2  Claim Center has on the people that use it.

          3                 Mr. Crespo, you brought out

          4  specifically the differences in languages spoken by

          5  different Hispanics, depending on where you come

          6  from, whether it is Dominican Republic, P.R., or

          7  Guatemala or other locations using the same words,

          8  can mean different meanings to different people.

          9  And so by having the diversity of staff, like we

         10  have in New York City, is extremely important.

         11  Because as you indicated, if someone calls and they

         12  press, I guess one is for English, two is for

         13  Spanish, do they have three, four, five, six, seven,

         14  eight, nine?  For Mandarin, for Cantonese, for, you

         15  know, Korean?  I would assume that you would have

         16  that because you have that diversity of people at

         17  the Claim Center.

         18                 But what is becoming even clearer to

         19  me by your testimony, is that there is clear

         20  discrimination that is taking place here.  I

         21  remember, quite frankly, when we filed the lawsuit

         22  against the State of New York, it happened to be

         23  Governor Cuomo at the time, but continued Governor

         24  Pataki for ever since he has been in office, for not

         25  funding the education system appropriately in New
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          2  York City.  At one point, one million school

          3  children, 86 percent of children of color and the

          4  Supreme Court Justice ruled in our favor.  And

          5  Governor Pataki continued to appeal that particular

          6  case, even as of today.

          7                 Clearly, this closing of the

          8  Telephone Claim Center is going to have a negative

          9  impact which is going to have economic repercussions

         10  in our communities.  When I say our communities, I

         11  mean all of the communities of New York City, more

         12  specifically, the communities of color is going to

         13  be the hardest hit overall. And one of the things

         14  that I noted down here, is that PEF has filed a

         15  lawsuit and has not been adjudicated yet, but I am

         16  going to speak to the Speaker of the City Council to

         17  see if the New York City Council would join in on

         18  that lawsuit.  And if the City Council does not want

         19  to do that specifically, then I will consult with

         20  appropriate counsel whether or not I, as a

         21  representative of the people of my district, which

         22  is in northern Manhattan, whether or not I, as an

         23  individual council member can join on and add to

         24  that particular lawsuit.  Because I think it is

         25  absolutely necessary. Because the impact, the
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          2  desperate impact in our communities in New York City

          3  is just totally, blatantly discriminatory.  And the

          4  impact is just going to be devastating.

          5                 So, I thank both of you for coming in

          6  and giving testimony.

          7                 MR. CRESPO: If I may, one more note.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I just wanted

          9  to say, sorry, what is your name, Miss?

         10                 MS. SIERRA: Miss Sierra.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Miss Sierra.

         12  I think that when you were giving your testimony as

         13  far as communicating with, trying to get on the

         14  phone and talk to Mayor Bloomberg, and the impact of

         15  you trying and how devastated you felt as a result

         16  of once you gave your name, that your call was

         17  passed over.  I was saying to myself, then we need

         18  to take this to Freddy Ferrer, and that is a

         19  commercial in itself.  Again, supposedly the access

         20  to the people, and I am very, very serious about

         21  that.  Because, as I stated earlier, and other

         22  people stated, this whole closure, is nothing but

         23  politics.  It has nothing to do with the money.  As

         24  I said earlier, New York State has a $105 billion

         25  dollar budget.  And we are talking about nine
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          2  million dollars.  It is minuscule in the scheme of

          3  things.  And the impact that this is going to have

          4  on the people of New York City when one of your

          5  representatives said that 38,000 calls have been

          6  dropped, that was reported to them  So that means

          7  tens of thousands of people are not receiving their

          8  benefits and losing their apartments and their cars

          9  being repossessed and other stuff like that, cannot

         10  buy food, and those are the tens of thousands of

         11  more people that are going to fall on the services

         12  of the government in order to try to survive.

         13                 So, I want to thank both of you for

         14  coming in and giving testimony.  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 MR. CRESPO: If I may, one moment

         17  please?  In addition, it was mentioned that every

         18  government official should be responsible for his or

         19  her actions, or his or her words.  In the letter

         20  that was mentioned by Mr. Faucher that was given to

         21  PEF and was later passed on to us, one of the

         22  paragraphs inside that letter stated that Pataki and

         23  his administration was going to help us with the

         24  assistance of jobs within the City.  It was not

         25  stated in those particular words, I do not have the
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          2  letter right in front of me to actually recite the

          3  words that were stated.  Now to date, I have not

          4  heard one single offer of employment, one single

          5  thing coming from the City, or State.  The State has

          6  yet to be seen because the State will talk to us on

          7  the 27th.  27th is it?  29th?  They will be speaking

          8  to us.  However, it was printed on a paper, stating

          9  that work will be offered, that they will be

         10  assisting us with that.  However, I am a man of my

         11  word.  Where I put my mouth, I put my foot.  If I

         12  say I am going to take two steps forward, my foot is

         13  already two steps forward.  I like to think that the

         14  people that are leading this City, are the same way.

         15    And if not him, the people that work for him, the

         16  people in his cabinet.  If my brother says my

         17  brother will be there at 2:00, he has already made a

         18  promise, I should be there because he is

         19  representing me.  The same way if a person of his

         20  cabinet says, that work will be offered, and work

         21  assistance will be given.   Something should be

         22  done.  He should be held accountable for what he is

         23  saying.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Both Mr. Crespo

         25  and Ms. Sierra, you both pointed out an issue that
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          2  again I would like to reiterate. This Call Center

          3  again, did efficient work, that the work there was

          4  done by dedicated people who served the people of

          5  this City greatly.  And the closing of this Call

          6  Center is no reflection obviously, of the work that

          7  they did.  So, you brought that out in your

          8  testimony and I appreciate that, and I appreciate

          9  you both for your time and testimony today.

         10                 While I understand that the workers

         11  who spoke today and the workers that are affected by

         12  the Call Center closing are New York State employees

         13  for a New York State agency, the bottom line is they

         14  are City residents, serving City residents, as well.

         15  And if the closure is due to economic reasons, then

         16  New York State is not going to solve all its

         17  economic problems by closing this Call Center.  So

         18  obviously there is a deeper reason behind the

         19  closing of this Call Center.  But what the Call

         20  Center closing will do, is it will negatively

         21  impact, obviously directly, people's lives, both the

         22  workers and those being serviced by, and directly

         23  have a negative impact on the lower Manhattan

         24  rebirth that we are experiencing right now.  And

         25  that is why the resolution that we voted on earlier
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          2  today, 1083, is calling upon the Governor and

          3  Department of State, Department of Labor for the

          4  State, to keep this Call Center open.  That is what

          5  the resolution will do.  The resolution will be

          6  voted on and approved by the City Council tomorrow.

          7  I plan on doing letters to the Governor and to the

          8  Mayor and knowing that time is of the essence,

          9  probably phone calls, as well, to express my

         10  displeasure for the proposed closing of this Call

         11  Center.  And again, there is strength in numbers.

         12  So I join with you in that voice, of trying to keep

         13  this Call Center open.

         14                 So your time here is well spent.  I

         15  thank you so much for your time.  And this committee

         16  is now adjourned.  Thank you very much.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 3:54 p.m.)
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